


Woodstock City Council 

May 6, 2014  

Page Two 

 

                   

CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 

no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 

Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 

a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 

member of the City Council for separate action.) 

 

 C.       MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              

           April 15, 2014 Regular Meeting 

  

  

 D.       WARRANTS:   3613      3614   MFT #534    

 

 

 E. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Dept. of Community & Economic Development Report – March 2014 

            Police Department Report – March 2014 

 Historic Preservation Commission Minutes – February 24, 2014 

 Plan Commission Minutes – April 24, 2014 

 

  

 F. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 23 

 

1. Traffic Ordinances – Community Events- Approval of the following: 

 a.) An Ordinance establishing temporary parking restrictions for the       

      Girls on the Run 5K of Northwest Illinois on Sunday, May 18, 2014. 

 b.)  An Ordinance establishing temporary traffic and parking restrictions 

       for the annual Memorial Day parade and ceremony on Monday, May 

       26, 2014 

 c.)  An Ordinance establishing temporary traffic and parking restrictions 

       for the VFW Remember Our Heroes Car Show on Saturday, June     

        28, 2014. 

 d.)  An Ordinance establishing certain temporary parking restrictions in  

        and near Emricson Park on Friday, July 4, 2014 

 e.) An Ordinance establishing certain temporary parking restrictions       

       for the McHenry County Fair from Wednesday, July 30, 2014 thru    

       Monday, August 4, 2014. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(23a) 

(Doc.1) 

 

(Doc.2) 

 

 

(Doc.3) 

 

 

(Doc.4) 

 

(Doc.5) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Woodstock City Council 

May 6, 2014  

Page Three 

 

2.    NIGEC Contract – Ratification of executed contracts for electric power  

              with Constellation NewEnergy for a period of 18 and 36 months. 

   

3.   Police Department Mutual Aid Agreement – Adoption of a Resolution 

authorizing the City of Woodstock to join the Illinois Law Enforcement 

Alarm System (ILEAS). 

 

          4.  Purchase of Water Meters – Approval of the waiver of the requirement    

               for competitive bids and the purchase of a new water meter reading system 

               and a minimum of 650 water meters from Water Resources, Inc.  

 

    5.  Zoning Variation – 1176 Kishwaukee Valley Road –Adoption of An      

         Ordinance Rezoning Land Located at 1176 Kishwaukee Valley              

         Road from B4 Office District To R1D Single Family Detached               

         Residential District. 

 

6.  Building Code Variance – Coleman’s –Adoption of an Ordinance 

     varying building code provisions for property at 823 Lake Avenue. 

 

7. Old Courthouse Roof Repair – Change Order – Adoption of a                

      Resolution authorizing Change Order 005.   

 

 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 

ADJOURN TO MAY 12, 2014 CITY COUNCIL RETREAT AT THE STAGE 

LEFT CAFÉ  

 

NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), this 

and all other City Council meetings are located in facilities that are physically 

accessible to those who have disabilities.  If additional reasonable 

accommodations are needed, please call the City Manager’s Office at 815/338-

4301  at least 72 hours prior to any meeting so that accommodations can be made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(23b) 

 

 

(23c)(Doc.6) 

 

 

 

(23d) 

 

 

 

(23e)(Doc.7) 

 

 

 

 

(23f)(Doc.8) 

 

 

(23g)(Doc.9) 



 

Memo 
To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager   

From: Paul N. Christensen, Finance Director 

 John Scharres, Managing Director, Opera House 

Date: May 1, 2014 

Re: Friends of the Opera House Donation 

As with past years, the Friends of the Opera House are making a generous cash donation to the 

City of Woodstock.  These funds are given to the City to assist in the operations and 

maintenance of the historic Woodstock Opera House, which turns 125 years old next year. 

With this donation of $10,000, the Friends of the Opera House have contributed to the City a 

total of $100,000 since their inception in 2005.  Over the past 9 years Friends have also 

purchased numerous furnishings, various pieces of equipment and employee uniforms, in 

addition to funding several arts programs. 

The Friends of the Opera House are recognized as a 501(c)3 organization and welcome 

everyone who wishes to become a friend of this unique and historic building.  The Friends 

were created with the sole purpose of supporting the Woodstock Opera House.  Beyond the 

money that they raise, other goals of the organization are to increase community awareness 

and involvement along with promoting the numerous programs and events for the historic 

building.   

This year’s donation to the City was raised through a variety of fundraising projects.  Some 

notable events from this past year include: an Art, Antiques and Collectables Auction; a 

costume party called Hollywood Halloween; their annual 50/50 Raffle; and the very popular 

formal annual holiday reception held before the Lighting of the Square in November.  

The Friends of the Opera House have again scheduled several fundraising events for the 

upcoming year which include the annual 50/50 Raffle, the second annual Art, Antiques and 

Collectables Auction, a unique Halloween show and costume party hosted by well-known 

actor  John Astin and of course, the reception before the Lighting of the Square.  All of these 

endeavors help to insure the continued vitality of the Opera House for future generations. 

Finance Department  
       City of   

                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2269 



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    

               
Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  

3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  

www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Paul R. Ruscko, Public Works Director 

 

Re: Proclamation Celebrating National Public Works Week 

 

Date: April 25, 2014 

 

National Public Works Week is observed each year during the third full week of May.  This 

annual event is meant to increase awareness and educate the public on the importance of the 

contribution of public works to their daily lives: planning, building, managing and operating the 

infrastructure of our local community and improving the quality of life. 

 

This year, the theme of Public Works Week is “Building for Today, Planning for Tomorrow.”  

This theme represents the classic idea of stewardship embodied by the profession of public 

works and the professionals that practice it.  Focusing on community, "building" points out the 

day-to-day aspect of public works that is quality of life, while "planning" references the 

sustainable practices that ensure that quality of life for future generations.  Public works plays a 

key role in the planning, building and maintenance of infrastructure projects in the community 

that will allow future generations to enjoy a higher quality of life. 

 

The City of Woodstock Public Works employees provide essential services for all aspects of the 

daily lives of our residents and provide services that are all encompassing and all around the 

City.  Public Works employees serve our residents with their needs for drinking water treatment 

and distribution, wastewater treatment, sewage collection, fire hydrant maintenance & repair, 

parks, recreational facilities, open space and landscaped areas, street maintenance, sidewalks for 

pedestrian access, forestry services, snow removal, fleet maintenance, storm water conveyance, 

engineering services, right-of-way management and maintenance, and so much more.  The 

Woodstock Public Works Department provides services that are truly beneficial and essential for 

each individual resident as well as the entire community.  The staff works day in and day out for 

the greater good of the community. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Proclamation be approved celebrating National Public 

Works Week and recognizing the importance and contributions of all Woodstock Public 

Works employees. 

rstelford
Approved



 

 

NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 

PROCLAMATION 
 

 

WHEREAS, an integral part of our citizens’ everyday lives is the quality and efficiency 

found in the design, construction and operation of Public Works systems and programs 

such as water, wastewater, distribution systems, drainage, streets, parks, vehicles and 

equipment, and public buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on these 

facilities and services; and 

 

WHEREAS, these services are provided by professionals who serve the public good with 

quiet dedication; and 

 

WHEREAS, the National Public Works Week theme of 2014 is “Building for Today, 

Planning for Tomorrow” recognizing that what we do today is vital to a sustainable and 

vibrant tomorrow; that Public works plays a key role in the planning, building and 

maintenance of infrastructure projects in the community that will allow future generations 

to enjoy a higher quality of life; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens and civic leaders in the City of 

Woodstock to gain knowledge of and to maintain a progressive interest and understanding 

of the importance of public works and public works programs in their community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the residents of the City of Woodstock are served by Public Works 

employees who are dedicated to providing the best services possible on a daily basis; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council do 

hereby proclaim the week of May 18 through May 24, 2014 as NATIONAL PUBLIC 

WORKS WEEK in the City of Woodstock. 

 

All citizens and civic organizations are called upon to acquaint themselves with the issues 

involved in providing our public works and to recognize the contributions which Public 

Works’ employees make every day to our health, safety, comfort, and quality of life. 

 

                                                             

    __________________________ 

         Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk          

 



       City of 

               
 
Pol i ce  Department  phone 815 .338 .6787  

Rober t  W.  Lo wen,  Chie f o f  Po l ice  fax 815 .334 .2275  

656  Lake Avenue  po l iced ept@wood stocki l .gov  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

To: Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 

From: Robert W. Lowen, Chief of Police 

Re: Proclamation Acknowledging National Police Week 

Date: April 30, 2014 

 

In 1962, President Kennedy proclaimed May 15
th

 as National Peace Officers Memorial Day and 

the calendar week in which May 15
th

 falls, as National Police Week.  Established by a joint 

resolution of Congress in 1962, National Police Week pays special recognition to those law 

enforcement officers who have lost their lives in the line of duty for the safety and protection of 

others.  

 

During National Police Week we take time to remember those who have lost their lives in the 

line of duty across the United States of America and acknowledge those in law enforcement who 

day in and day out put their lives on the line to protect the citizens they serve.   

 

The Woodstock Police Department embraces the tenets of Vision 2020 and assures that, “Our 

Police Department is a vigilant guardian of our peaceful city, and businesses and citizens are 

actively involved in maintaining peace and security.”  The Woodstock Police Department 

accomplishes this vision through our mission and primary goal which is, “Providing the highest 

quality of police services by working with our Community and sharing our mutual 

responsibilities for safety, service and problem resolution.”  

 

Council is asked to approve the attached Proclamation celebrating National Police Week; 

recognizing the Men and Women of the Woodstock Police Department for their dedication 

and commitment to ensuring the safety and security of the Woodstock Community. 

rstelford
Approved





 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 
 

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM:  Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

DATE:  April 23, 2014 

 

RE:  Retirement Proclamations 

 

 

At the May 6
th
 City Council meeting, four dedicated and committed public servants will be recognized as 

they have announced their intentions to retire in May.  These four exemplary employees represent over 

125 years of public service to the Woodstock community.  Their contributions to our organization were 

not only significant and extensive, but will remain with us and last well beyond their respective 

retirements.  Specific information concerning the four retirees being honored has been provided below: 

 

 Name Department Position Hire Date Years of Service 

Dennis Leard Police Sergeant 3/31/1988 26 Years 

Fred Spitzer Police Officer 3/15/1984 30 Years 

Tim DeWane Public Works Heavy Equip. Op. 6/12/1980 34 Years 

Bill Kreutz Public Works Supervisor 2/21/1979 35 Years 

 

The contributions of these individuals cannot be easily and adequately summarized in writing due in large 

part to the extensive and diverse nature of their accomplishments.  As a small example of their significant 

and assorted achievements, these four employees are responsible for a range of accomplishments from 

developing and guiding the Police Department to achieve a number of first and second place finishes in 

the Traffic Safety Challenges, to educating our youth regarding the dangers from alcohol and drug abuse, 

to the actual construction of the dais and staff table utilized in the City Council Chambers, to leading our 

environmental efforts regarding the utilization of alternative fuels for the City’s fleet.   

 

Please join me in congratulating all four of these admirable public servants on their transition to 

retirement and thank them for their significant contributions to our community. 

 



       City of 

               
 
Pol i ce  Department  phone 815 .338 .6787  

Rober t  W.  Lo wen,  Chie f o f  Po l ice  fax 815 .334 .2275  

656  Lake Avenue  po l iced ept@wood stocki l .gov  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

To:  Mr. Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 
From: Robert W. Lowen, Police Chief 
Date: April 23, 2014 
Re: Proclamation Honoring Sergeant Dennis E. Leard 
 
This correspondence is a request for the City Council to issue a Proclamation honoring 
Sergeant Dennis E. Leard for his service to the citizens of the City of Woodstock. 
 
As depicted by the attached correspondence, Sergeant Dennis E. Leard has served the 
City of Woodstock and the Woodstock Police Department for twenty-six years in various 
capacities. 
 
Starting his career on March 31, 1988, Dennis served seventeen years as a Patrol 
Officer and was promoted to Sergeant in April 2005. Since his promotion to Sergeant, 
Dennis has served as a Patrol Sergeant and Supervisor of the Traffic Safety Unit and 
has honorably performed in those roles until the present.  He has also served ably on 
the Police Pension Board for fourteen years. 
 
Sergeant Leard has dedicated more than twenty-six years of devoted service to the 
Woodstock Police Department and the Woodstock community and given unselfishly of 
his time and talents serving the needs of the community. 
 
Therefore I recommend that the City Council approve the attached Proclamation 
honoring Sergeant Dennis E. Leard for his 26 years of service to the citizens of 
the City of Woodstock.  
 

rstelford
Approved



PROCLAMATION 

HONORING 

Dennis E. Leard 
 

WHEREAS, Dennis E. Leard is retiring from his position as Patrol Sergeant of the 

Woodstock Police Department after serving the citizens of Woodstock in a public service 

capacity for twenty-six years and in appreciation of these many years of service, the City 

wishes to recognize the contributions of Dennis E. Leard; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dennis E. Leard began his service in 1988 as a Patrol Officer and patrolled 

the streets of the community until 2005 when he was appointed to Police Sergeant; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dennis E. Leard continued his service to the community upon his 

promotion to Patrol Sergeant in 2005 and was responsible for the delivery of police 

services to the community in an effective and efficient manner while also acting as the 

Supervisor of the Traffic Safety Unit; and  

 

WHEREAS, Dennis E. Leard was appointed Supervisor of the Traffic Safety Unit where 

he was responsible for major traffic accident investigations; IDOT Grant Coordination; 

motorcycle unit; school bus safety; management of abandoned autos; and served as 

Accident Review Board Supervisor, and prepared and submitted seven successful 

International Association of Chiefs of Police “Traffic Safety Challenges” where the 

Woodstock Police Department was recognized with several first place finishes for traffic 

safety initiatives in the community; and  

 

WHEREAS, Dennis E. Leard, was committed to the community and to the Woodstock 

Police Department where he volunteered for a number of community and Police-related 

events such as the Christmas Clearing House and Shop with a Cop programs, and ably 

served on the Police Pension Board for fourteen years. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City of Woodstock is deeply 

appreciative of the time, talents and efforts provided by Dennis E. Leard and thank him 

for his twenty-six years of public service to the citizens of the City of Woodstock.   

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry 

County, this 6th day of May, 2014. 

 

      _______________________________ 

                   Brian Sager, Ph.D. 
         Mayor 

Attest: 

 

______________________ 

Dianne Mitchell 

City Clerk 



       City of 

               
 
Pol i ce  Department  phone 815 .338 .6787  

Rober t  W.  Lo wen,  Chie f o f  Po l ice  fax 815 .334 .2275  

656  Lake Avenue  po l iced ept@wood stocki l .gov  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

To:  Mr. Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 
From: Robert W. Lowen, Police Chief 
Date: April 23, 2014 
Re: Proclamation Honoring Officer Frederick R. Spitzer 
 
This correspondence is a request for the City Council to issue a Proclamation honoring 
Officer Frederick R. Spitzer for his service to the citizens of the City of Woodstock. 
 
As depicted by the attached proclamation, Officer Frederick R. Spitzer has served the 
City of Woodstock and the Woodstock Police Department for thirty years in various 
capacities. 
 
Starting his career on March 15, 1984, Fred served fourteen years as a Patrol Officer, 
eleven years as a DARE Officer and five years as a Detective.  Officer Spitzer also 
specialized as a Field Training Officer and Breathalyzer Operator. 
 
Officer Spitzer has dedicated more than thirty years of devoted service to the 
Woodstock Police Department and the Woodstock community and given unselfishly of 
his time and talents serving the needs of the Community. 
 
Therefore, It is recommend that the City Council approve the Proclamation 
honoring Officer Frederick R. Spitzer for his 30 years of service to the citizens of 
the City of Woodstock.  

rstelford
Approved



PROCLAMATION 

HONORING 

Frederick R. Spitzer 

 
WHEREAS, Frederick R. Spitzer  is retiring from his position as Patrol Officer of the 

Woodstock Police Department after serving the citizens of Woodstock in a public service 

capacity for thirty years; and in appreciation of these many years of service, the City 

wishes to recognize the contributions of Frederick R. Spitzer; and 
 

WHEREAS, Frederick R. Spitzer began his service in 1984 as a Patrol Officer and 

additionally served at times as a Breathalyzer Operator and Field Training Officer while 

he patrolled the streets of the community; and 
 

WHEREAS, Frederick R. Spitzer was assigned as a DARE Officer for an eleven-year 

period from August of 1994 until June of 2005 and performed admirably as he taught a 

great many students the dangers of drug and alcohol abuse during this assignment; and 
 

WHEREAS, Frederick R. Spitzer was assigned to the Investigations Division for a five- 

year period from January 2007 until December 2011 and was responsible for the 

investigation of many high-profile criminal matters that were prosecuted successfully; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, Frederick R. Spitzer continually volunteered his time for Community and 

Police Department-related events such as Christmas Clearing House, Shop with a Cop 

and the Dick Tracy Breakfast; and 
 

WHEREAS, Frederick R. Spitzer was President of the Fraternal Order of Police for a 

number of years and during that time coordinated the Fraternal Order of Police Golf 

Outings, assisted on the DARE Golf Outing and successfully assisted in the negotiations 

of all of Fraternal Order of Police labor contracts since the formation of the union. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City of Woodstock is appreciative 

of the time, talents and efforts provided by Frederick R. Spitzer and thank him for his 

thirty years of service to the citizens of the City of Woodstock.   
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry 

County, this 6th day of May 2014. 
 

      _______________________________ 

                     Brian Sager, Ph.D. 
         Mayor 

Attest: 

 

______________________ 

Dianne Mitchell 

City Clerk 



PROCLAMATION 
Honoring 

Tim DeWane 
 
WHEREAS, Tim DeWane is retiring from the City’s Public Works Department following 34 years of 
dedicated service, having started in an entry-level position in the Sewer and Water Maintenance Division and 
currently serving as Heavy Equipment Operator, responding to calls from residents and business owners, at 
all hours of the day and night, to resolve issues including plugged sewers, water leaks, underground utility 
locates, water meters, water shut-offs, sanitary sewer lift stations, water booster stations, etc.; and    
 

WHEREAS, Tim DeWane is considered by many of the younger employees in his division to be an 
historian of sorts because of his experience with, and documentation of, activities involving the City’s water 
and sewer infrastructure; and his Supervisor depends upon him greatly to mentor and foster less-tenured 
coworkers, as this is one of his best attributes; and  
 

WHEREAS, over the course of his tenure, Tim DeWane’s assistance has often been sought by 
Supervisors for projects involving building maintenance, construction of custom office furniture or cabinets, 
roofing, window repair, snow plowing, operation of a backhoe or vactor, pipe fitting, vehicle repair, or 
fabrication, knowing he could master anything, as long as you are not on a tight schedule; and 

 
WHEREAS, Tim DeWane has always been supportive of the City, the Department of Public Works, and 
his coworkers, being detail-oriented and dependable, enjoying working with his hands, and living with the 
motto “if it does not get done right the first time, improvise, adapt, and overcome;’ and 

 

WHEREAS, for as long as anyone can remember, Tim DeWane has come to work with the same “old 
fashioned” metal lunch box and thermos full of coffee and, when the job at hand dictated that they work 
through lunch, he would always say “tighten up your belt boys, we are working through lunch,” and during 
the summer months when lunch was on schedule, it would almost always end with the purchase and 
consumption of a chocolate malt from the nearby DQ; and  

 

WHEREAS, Tim DeWane, a member of the ‘Black Widows’ motorcycle group (made up of other 
retired Woodstock Public Works employees), is still accepted by the group even though he chooses to own 
and drive a Honda Gold Wing instead of an intimidating Harley Davidson; he can now look forward to 
planned trips without worrying if he can get time off from work, as well as enjoying time with his girls, which 
now includes newborn granddaughter Adley. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of Woodstock, on 

behalf of all citizens of Woodstock, extends to Tim DeWane the community's heartfelt gratitude for his 
years of dedicated service as a City of Woodstock employee and an outstanding contributor to the success of 
the Woodstock Public Works Department. 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, this 6th 

day of May, 2014. 
 
____________________________ 
Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 



PROCLAMATION 
Honoring 

BILL KREUTZ 
 

WHEREAS, Bill Kreutz is officially retiring from the City of Woodstock after serving as Supervisor of the 
Fleet Maintenance Division in the Public Works Department; working his way up from an entry level 
Mechanic position more than 35 years ago. Throughout his career he worked to educate, train, mentor, and 
support those Public Works employees who drove, operated, and maintained City vehicles and equipment; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the Fleet Maintenance Supervisor is responsible for the maintenance and repairs to the Public 
Works Facility, as well as all municipally-owned vehicles assigned to the Opera House, the Police 
Department, City Hall, the Recreation Department, and the Department of Public Works; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department depends upon Bill Kreutz to administer repairs to a wide-
variety of equipment including wheel loaders, backhoes, trailers, asphalt rollers, zero-turn mowers, pumps, 
vibratory compactors, weed whips, snow plows, fork lifts, aerial lift equipment, electronic message-sign 
boards, sewer jetting machines, etc.; and 
 

WHEREAS, Bill Kreutz’s customers are City employees who depend upon his knowledge and expertise to 
provide services to the residents of the Woodstock community and his leadership, dedication and 
professionalism has made it possible to repair water main breaks and plugged sewers, clear snow and ice from 
City streets, maintain parks and ball fields, fill potholes, respond to calls for police assistance, provide building 
inspection services, offer storm water solutions, provide youth ski trips through recreation, etc.; and 
 

WHEREAS, Bill Kreutz has facilitated the incorporation of both hybrid and alternative-fueled vehicles to 
the City’s fleet and has secured the necessary permits to have a propane fuel station constructed at the Public 
Works Facility and was involved with every new vehicle and equipment purchase in order to confirm “that it 
was the best for the task being completed and the best selection for the City;” and   
 

WHEREAS, Bill Kreutz and his staff took on the role of converting new squad cars into police vehicles, 
saving the City funds that would otherwise be paid to outside contractors; and in addition, his division 
prepared and delivered vehicles and equipment to the annual MCCG Surplus Vehicle and Equipment 
Auction, netting a high return on the City’s equipment investments; and   
 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock is truly appreciative of the commitment to the community that has 
been displayed by Bill Kreutz in his role as a public servant, and has benefited from his knowledge, talent, and 
experience. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of Woodstock, on 
behalf of all citizens of Woodstock, extends to Bill Kreutz the community's heartfelt gratitude for his years 
of dedicated service as a City of Woodstock employee and an outstanding contributor to the City’s success.   
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, this 6th day 
of May, 2014. 
 

_______________________________ 
Attest:     Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 
 
_______________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 



       City of 

               
 
Pol i ce  Department  phone 815 .338 .6787  

Rober t  W.  Lo wen,  Chie f o f  Po l ice  fax 815 .334 .2275  

656  Lake Avenue  po l iced ept@wood stocki l .gov  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

To: Mr. Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 
From: Robert W. Lowen, Chief of Police 
Date: April 23, 2014 
Re: Sergeant Arthur “Ray” Lanz  
 
 
Sergeant Arthur “Ray” Lanz is a twelve (12) year veteran of the Woodstock Police 
Department.  He has been in the Investigations Division since January 2014 and was 
responsible for the successful resolution of a number of high-profile criminal 
investigations.  Sergeant Lanz has performed duties as a Canine Handler, Field 
Training Officer, Crisis Intervention Officer, Evidence Technician and is also a Police 
Explorer Scout Advisor.  Sergeant Lanz has a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Criminal 
Justice and is active in the community with events such as Christmas Clearing House, 
Shop with a Cop, St. Baldrick’s and the Polar Plunge for Special Olympics. 
 
Therefore, It is recommended that the City Council approve the appointment of 
Arthur “Ray” Lanz to serve in the position of Police Sergeant for the City of 
Woodstock, State of Illinois. 
 
Oath of Office will be administered by Chief Robert W. Lowen and Chairman of the 
Board of Fire and Police Commissioners Ronald Giordano. 
 

rstelford
Approved



 

Memo 
To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Paul N. Christensen, Finance Director 

Date: April 23, 2014 

Re: Public Hearing Related to 2003 Debt Certificates 

On April 15, 2014 the City Council authorized the issuance of alternate revenue bonds to 

refund the Series 2003 debt certificates that had been used to purchase and expand the 

Recreation Center.  As part of State Statutes and contained in the approved ordinance, the City 

must conduct a public hearing.  The purpose of this public hearing is to receive public 

comments on the proposal to sell bonds in an amount up to $900,000 to refinance prior debt 

certificates related to the Recreation Center. 

This public hearing has been scheduled for May 6, 2014 at 7pm.  A notice of this public 

hearing has been published in the Northwest Herald on April 18
th
.  Again all these steps are 

required by State of Illinois Statutes.  The final step in refunding these bonds, Series 2003, 

along with the 2005B bonds, which were used for Lake Avenue improvements, McConnell 

Road improvements, Davis Road Soccer Fields construction, and Merryman Park 

construction, will be an ordinance authorizing the issuance of Series 2014 alternate revenue 

bonds that will be presented to the City Council on May 20
th
. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Finance Department  
       City of   

                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2269 



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

April 15, 2014 

City Council Chambers 

 

The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Brian 

Sager on Tuesday, April 15, 2014 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  He explained the consent 

calendar process and invited public participation.  He introduced Boy Scouts Troop 159 who was in 

attendance at the meeting. 

 

A roll call was taken.   

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Julie Dillon, Maureen Larson, Mayor Brian Sager, Joseph 

Starzynski, RB Thompson, Michael Turner 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Mark Saladin 

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney TJ Clifton, Finance Director Paul 

Christensen, Economic Development Director Cort Carlson, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, 

Library Director Nick Weber, HR Director Deb Schober 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:  

1.)  Proclamation Honoring Don Peasley 

Mayor Sager stated that with the onset of the baseball season there will be a dedication ceremony 

at Merryman Fields.  After receiving approval from Council, he read the proclamation honoring 

Don Peasley.   

                        

2.) Proclamation Honoring Woodstock Garden Club’s 90
th

 Anniversary 
Mayor Sager invited members of the Woodstock Garden Club to the podium where he, after 

receiving approval from Council, read the proclamation honoring the Club’s 90th Anniversary.  The 

Woodstock Garden Club members expressed gratefulness for the honor of the proclamation and 

noted that for 90 years the Club has worked together with Council for the betterment, for the 

beautification and for the well-being of the city. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that we are celebrating two 90th anniversaries as Don Peasley was 90 years old 

and served the community as indicated; so incredibly fulfilling in terms of the community and 

upholding in his life service to our community and to others.  He stated that it is also exemplified by 

the Woodstock Garden Club with their 90 years of service.  He stated that it is incredibly important 

for everyone to realize that we all have an opportunity to give to the community and service to 

others.  He stated that this beautiful organization has contributed to the beauty, the aesthetic and to 

the values we uphold in our community. 

 

Public Comments 

No comments from public. 

 

Council Comments 

M. Larson stated that she was at Kolze’s nursery where she ran into the manager and found that he is 

spearheading a plant an extra row movement.  She advised that if you have a garden and you plant an 

extra row more than what you need for your own family, he will take any donations of fresh 

vegetables and will deliver them to the food pantries in Woodstock and Crystal Lake.  She advised 



Woodstock City Council 

4/15/14 

Page 2 of 3 

 

that he stated that he can take donations every day, any day and she noted that he is hoping to get 

about 3,000 pounds of fresh produce this year. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Motion by J. Dillon, second by M. Turner to concur with Consent Agenda Items B – E9. 

 

B.       MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
           April 1, 2014 Regular Meeting 

   

 C.       WARRANTS:   3611      3612   MFT #533    

 

 D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Opera House Advisory Commission Minutes – February 18, 2014 

 Library Board Minutes- March 6, 2014  

  

 E MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 21 

 

1. Appointments - Old Courthouse RFP Advisory Committee – Approval of the 

appointments of Councilwoman Maureen Larson, Councilman RB Thompson, 

Economic Development Commissioner Arlene Lyons, Historic Preservation 

Commissioner Allen Stebbins and Plan Commissioner Jack Porter to the Old 

Courthouse RFP Review Advisory Committee. 

 

2. Appointments – Building Board of Construction and Electrical Commission – 

Approval of the appointment of Michael Hill to the Board of Building Construction 

and Scott Nieman to the Electrical Commission.   

 

3.  Liquor Amendment – Calogero’s and Main Street Pour House – Adoption of 

Ordinance 14-O-24 amending Title 3, Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock 

City Code, reducing the number of Class D and Class A-1 liquor licenses by one and 

increasing the number of Class E-1 and Class A-2 liquor licenses by one. 

 

4.  MFT Resolution- Adoption of Resolution 14-R-09 for Maintenance of Streets and 

Highways by Municipality under the Illinois Highway Code which appropriates 

$750,000 of Motor Fuel Tax funds from May 1, 2014 through April 30, 2015. 

 

5. Award of Contract – HVAC – Approval of an award of contract to Miller 

Engineering Company for the maintenance of HVAC for a period of one year at a 

Total Preventative Maintenance Program amount of $12,546. 

 

 6. Annual Budget for FY 14/15 – Approval of Ordinance 14-O-25 adopting the City of 

Woodstock’s FY14/15 Budget. 

 

 7. Schedule of Authorized Positions FY14/15 – Approval of the City of Woodstock’s 

General Salary Range Table and the Schedule of Authorized Positions for FY14/15. 

 

8. Water and Sewer Rate Fees FY14/15 – Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-26 amending 

Title 6, Chapter 4 of the City Code pertaining to water and sewer rates. 



Woodstock City Council 

4/15/14 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

9. General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2014 – Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-27 

authorizing the Issuance of Alternate Revenue Source Bonds (in  Lieu of Revenue 

Bonds) of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, to Refinance a 

Recreation Center. 
 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, Mayor Sager, J. Starzynski, RB Thompson, 

M. Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: M. Saladin. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

 DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 

 10. Scheduling of Council Retreat 
After discussion the Council decided to schedule the Council Retreat for Monday, May 12, 2014 at 

3:00 PM at Stage Left.   

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

J. Dillon wanted to discuss the possibility of the elimination of plastic bags.  Mayor Sager suggested 

talking about it at the workshop. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by RB Thompson, second by M. Larson, to adjourn the regular meeting of the City Council 

to the next Regular Meeting on May 6, 2014. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, Mayor Sager, J. Starzynski, 

RB Thompson, M. Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: M. Saladin. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:23 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell  

City Clerk 





































































































































CITY OF WOODSTOCK 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

February 24, 2014 
City Council Chambers 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission was called to order 
at 7:00 PM by Chairman Allen Stebbins on Monday, February 24, 2014 in Council Chambers 
at City Hall.  
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:   Jodie Kurtz-Osborne, Rodney Paglialong, 
Chairman Allen Stebbins, Erica Wilson 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 

 
 STAFF PRESENT:  City Planner Nancy Baker 
 
 OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
Motion by R. Paglialong, second by J. Kurtz-Osborne to approve the January 27, 2014 minutes 
of the Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission with the following changes:  

 
 Per J. Kurtz-Osborne: Page 1 under General Business, need to add “Osborne” after J. Kurtz. 
 
 Per A. Stebbins: Page 4, first line of 4th paragraph, should be “during” not “doing.” 

 
Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: 
None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments from the public. 
 
III. GENERAL BUSINESS 

A. Sign Variation:  126 Benton Street—Public Hearing 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by R. Paglialong to open the Public Hearing at 7:04       
PM. Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. Wilson. Nays: 
None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Fred Bruchsaler, one of the owners of Liquid Blues, stated that they are trying to clean 
up the whole general area, which has been neglected in his opinion.  He reported that he 
has been coming to the City quite a bit asking how to do it correctly.  He advised that 
one of the problems that the business has had is no signage.  He stated that there is a 
sign on the back of the building but he really wants something on the front. 
 
F. Bruchsaler reported that there had always been a sign off the corner when it was 
Uncle Dan’s and noted that the brackets are already there.  He stated that to put another 
bracket system up there is thousands of dollars.  He wants to use what is up there which 
is solid steel and already has the electric.   He referenced the photos he submitted and 
pointed out the bracket which he will use to hang a two-sided sign that can be seen 



Historic Preservation Commission 
2/24/14 

Page 2 of 5 
 

from all different directions from that corner.  He advised that it will be lit up since 
everything is there.   
 
F. Bruchsaler stated that the sign is supposed to be at 90 degrees from the building; 
however, the original bracket is 45 degrees noting that the prior sign hung there for 
seventeen years.  He is asking for a variance to put the sign back originally where it 
was historically and to help the business since you would be able to see it from all 
angles.  He stated that if he puts it at 90 degrees he loses a lot of exposure.  He advised 
that size of the sign meets all the codes and he stated that it be secured with chains. He 
stated that it will be constructed with outdoor material. 
 
A. Stebbins questioned the sign material and F. Bruchsaler advised that it is an MDO 
which is made for outdoor use.  He stated that it is a pressed, composite board that is 
made with resins in it so it doesn’t break down from moisture.   
 
R. Paglialong questioned if the sign will be painted and F. Bruchsaler advised that it is 
an adhesive outdoor label that is UV protected.  He stated that the edges will be sealed 
with paint.  A. Stebbins questioned the lighting and F. Bruchsaler stated that right now 
there are halogen lights and noted that there might be a chance he may have to change 
them or replace them, but it won’t be different then what is there. 
 
E. Wilson stated that she likes the idea of the having the sign on the corner because 
otherwise you would need two signs which would make it look cluttered.  J. Kurtz-
Osborne thanked him for caring about his property. 

 
  A. Stebbins noted that no one was in attendance at the meeting for public comment and 
  advised that public hearing notices were mailed to adjoining properties. 
 

Motion by R. Paglialong, second E. Wilson to close the public hearing at 7:12 P.M. 
Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. Wilson. Nays: None. 
Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by J. Kurtz-Osborne to approve the sign variance request 
for 126 Benton Street.  Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. 
Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

    
A. 101 N. Johnson Street Certificate of Appropriateness to allow installation of 

crenellation at top of dome 
  
 A. Stebbins stated that the crenellation would be a nice restoration on the dome and 
 then questioned if the  widows walk will be done in the future. N. Baker advised that it 
 isn’t something they are currently planning right now. 
 
 R. Paglialong questioned if the flagpole will not be going up and N. Baker affirmed. 
 She stated that the lightening protection in the bid for the dome was really expensive 
 and noted that they have asked the contractor to come back with an alternative.  She 
 stated that they came back considerably lower but advised that she is thinking that it 



Historic Preservation Commission 
2/24/14 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 would be nice to have a small, decorative spire up there.  She stated that she can bring it 
 back to HPC if and when she finds something. 
 
 The Commission went through the COA checklist and conceded that the request met 
 the requirements.   
  
 Motion by R. Paglialong, second by J. Kurtz-Osborne to approve the 101 N. Johnson 
 Street Certificate of Appropriateness to allow installation of crenellation at top of dome. 
 Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. Wilson. Nays: None. 
 Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 
B. Discussion of Historic Walking Tour as part of Historic Preservation Month and 

Woodstock Celebrates Orson Welles weekend 
 
A. Stebbins stated that the Commission needs to come up with a time to do the tour 
which he can then forward on to Kathleen Spaltro who is putting together the calendar 
of events for the festival.  He suggested that he can put together, based on the walking 
tour, a brief synopsis of properties that they would want to feature.  He stated that he 
would forward it to Nancy to make sure it is correct.  He is hoping that by April the 
Commission can meet outside and do a quick walk-around and go through it.   
 
A. Stebbins suggested doing the tour that Saturday at 1:00 p.m.  He stated that he 
believes there is a break in their events around 12:30 p.m. or 1 p.m. and they aren’t 
reconvening until 2 p.m.  He stated that the 1:00 p.m. timeframe on a Saturday is good 
because it is about the time the Farmers Market is ending and they might potentially get 
more people to show up to the tour.  He stated that he thought it would be an hour tour.   
He stated that hopefully there will be enough people so that the Commission members 
can split up and take smaller groups.  He advised that if there isn’t a large group, then 
they could all go together and take turns discussing the properties around the Square.  
He noted that they can point out the Old Courthouse and pepper the walking tour with 
Welles facts along with any other movie types of things.   
 
J. Kurtz-Osborne stated that she has concerns with the whole organization and how it is 
going to pan out and the interest.  A. Stebbins stated that the way he is approaching this 
with K. Spaltro is that the Commission is not part of the festival but are offering it as 
part of National Historic Preservation Month.  He suggested promoting it in the 
Independent and through the Joint Council.  He advised that he shares her concerns. 
 
R. Paglialong questioned how they will proceed and A. Stebbins stated that if the time 
frame of that Saturday at 1:00 p.m. works then they will start publicizing it.  He stated 
that the Joint Council is next month and they will be asking for events for their calendar 
for Preservation Month.  He noted that they can put it in the City Manager’s letter, in 
the Independent and send a press release to the Northwest Herald. 
 
A. Stebbins stated that by next month he will have a draft for the Commission to 
review.  N. Baker questioned if they will set a rain date and the Commission decided 
they would just cancel it.  A. Stebbins stated that they would meet on the steps of the 



Historic Preservation Commission 
2/24/14 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Opera House.  He advised that he will draft the tour and send it to N. Baker. The 
Commission conceded that the day and time will work for the tour. 
 

C. Updates 
A. Stebbins advised that he talked to N. Baker about the cracked window at the 
Thoughtfulness Shop which has been covered up with plywood since homecoming.  N. 
Baker advised that the owners found that it is more complicated than it originally 
seemed and it has taken them awhile to get it figured out.  She noted that they aren’t 
planning on replacing it until the weather is better.  A. Stebbins stated that he wanted to 
raise the issue because it has been five months.  He questioned the boarded up window 
above the smoke shop and N. Baker advised that she approved a COA for Marvin 
aluminum clad wood windows.  She advised that they will be replacing both windows 
on the upper floor. 
 
A. Stebbins questioned the status of the potential digital sign by the Opera House and 
N. Baker advised that she talked to Roscoe Stelford who advised that the City Council 
did not like any of the recommendations from the consultant.  She stated that the Opera 
House Advisory board is doing the first review and once they have new 
recommendations they will bring them forward. 
 
A. Stebbins stated that the March meeting falls during spring break and the 
Commission picked March 17, 2014 as the alternate date for the March meeting. 
 
N. Baker reported that Kelsey Shipton, the intern that did the survey, is now working 
for U.S. Heritage Group which does masonry work.  She advised that the owner, Mario, 
is willing to do some public speaking and K. Shipton was wondering if HPC would be 
interested in having him come out to do a workshop.  N. Baker stated that she will work 
through K. Shipton and noted that she doesn’t want to do anything too soon because 
she wants to promote it well, invite the Joint Council and try to get the word out to 
building owners in Woodstock.   
 
A. Stebbins questioned if it is something that could be offered during May.  N. Baker 
advised that they haven’t talked timing and A. Stebbins suggested throwing out the idea 
of May.  A. Stebbins questioned if they would do it in the community room of the 
Opera House or at the library and N. Baker stated they could do it at City Hall or the 
library community room.  
 

D. Continue review of historic district contributing and non-contributing buildings 
starting with site 214 
214: non-contributing, integrity poor, condition good 
215: agree 
216: agree 
219-222: agree 
223: contributing, poor, poor 
224: requested more information on when the addition was put on 
225: N. Baker will research further 
226-228: agree 
229: contributing, integrity fair, condition good 



Historic Preservation Commission 
2/24/14 

Page 5 of 5 
 

230: contributing, integrity fair, condition good 
231: agree 
232: agree 
233: non-contributing, integrity N/A, condition good 
234: non-contributing, integrity N/A, condition good 
235: non-contributing, integrity N/A, condition fair 
236: non-contributing, integrity N/A, condition good 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT: 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by R. Paglialong to adjourn to the next regular meeting of the 
Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission. Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. 
Kurtz-Osborne, E. Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:07 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell – City Clerk 



CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES 

 

April 24, 2014 - City Council Chambers 

 

The regular meeting of the Woodstock Plan Commission was called to order at 7:00 PM by 

Chairwoman Katherine Parkhurst on Thursday, April 24, 2013 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  A 

roll call was taken. 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Fortin, Robert Horrell, Darrell Moore, 

Chairwoman Katherine Parkhurst, Jack Porter, Erich Thurow. 

  

PLAN COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT: William Clow, Steve Gavers, Doreen Paluch 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Planning and Zoning Administrator Jim Kastner 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES 

Motion by E. Thurow, second by D. Fortin, to approve the Agenda of the April 24, 2014 Plan 

Commission Meeting as presented. Ayes: D. Fortin, R. Horrell, D. Moore, K. Parkhurst, J. Porter, E. 

Thurow. Nays: None. Absentees: William Clow, S. Gavers, D. Paluch. Abstentions: None.  

 

Motion by R. Horrell, second by D. Moore, to approve the Minutes of the April 24, 2014 Plan 

Commission Meeting as presented.  Ayes: D. Fortin, R. Horrell, D. Moore, K. Parkhurst, J. Porter, E. 

Thurow. Nays: None. Absentees: William Clow, S. Gavers, D. Paluch. Abstentions: None.  

 

1.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 No comments from the public 

 

2.  OLD BUSINESS  

 No old business was discussed. 

 

3.  NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Public Hearing: B4 to R1D rezoning of 1176 Kishwaukee Valley Road 

 

CALL ROLL 

Chairwoman Parkhurst opened the Public Hearing at 7:02 PM.  A roll call was taken and it was 

determined that a quorum was present.   

 

Chairwoman Parkhurst swore in petitioner Geoff Corrado, 3290 Ronan Dr, Lake in the Hills.  G. 

Corrado stated that he is the hopeful purchaser for the property at 1176 Kishwaukee Valley Road.  He 

stated that he is the authorized agent from Susan Fleming and Michael Lackey. He advised that he and 

his family are hoping to buy the property and noted that currently as it is zoned they cannot get a 

mortgage.  He stated that they hope to have it resolved so they can obtain a mortgage. 

 

D. Fortin stated that he doesn’t have any problems with the request. 

 

K. Parkhurst questioned the policy of the requirement to connect to sewer and water.  J. Kastner 

advised that the property is on well and septic right now.  He reported that 10-15 years ago there was a 

problem with the septic which was worked on and the McHenry County Health Department inspected 

it so everything is operating properly.  He stated that if they are within 200 ft of municipal water or 

sanitary sewer system and their own well or sanitary system goes bad then they are required to connect.  



Woodstock Plan Commission 

April 24, 2014 

Page 2 of 3 

 

He advised that if they have an existing septic system that is functioning properly they are not required 

to connect.  He stated that it is a State law that the City follows. 

 

K. Parkhurst questioned if all the structures on the property comply with the proposed R1D zoning.  J. 

Kastner affirmed and advised that they have an updated survey which he distributed to the 

Commission.  He advised that the actual buildings on the property comply with all setback variances.   

 

K. Parkhurst stated that she thinks the change of zoning is appropriate since it is residential uses around 

the property.  She stated that it isn’t all zoned residential but the uses are typically residential.   She is 

in favor of changing it to residential but noted that if it goes residential and the petitioner comes back 

to change it to business she would not be in favor of it. 

 

R. Horrell questioned in the event that the septic or well fails that the petitioner understands that he will 

be required to hook up to City services.  G. Corrado affirmed and stated that he was told that the 

nearest services are on Borden St. J. Kastner stated that sewer is on Borden St. near Castleshire Dr. 

which may be over 200 ft away if you go in a straight line and if you follow the property lines it will be 

even further away.  He advised that municipal water is across the street on the south side of 

Kishwaukee Valley road.  R. Horrell questioned if the requirement is if either water or sewer is within 

200 ft and J. Kastner stated that if water is within 200 ft and the well fails they would have to connect 

and if sanitary sewer is within 200 ft and the septic system fails they have to connect assuming they 

physically and legally can.   

 

J. Porter questioned if the rezoning can be contingent if the petitioner doesn’t get the mortgage.  J. 

Kastner stated that the problem that Mr. Corrado is having will probably be experienced by anyone else 

wanting to buy the property.  He advised that in the last couple of years, due to federal banking laws, 

the banking companies no longer prefer to issue mortgage against a property which is damaged to a 

certain extent and can no longer be rebuilt and reestablished; they don’t want to loan money on 

something that has that kind of iffy restriction.  He stated that he thinks the property owners themselves 

would like to have it rezoned as well for a future contract purchaser if Mr. Corrado decides not to move 

forward. J. Porter questioned if the property owners are in favor as well and J. Kastner affirmed.   

 

J. Porter stated that on the survey that was submitted it shows existing septic system area abandoned 

and questioned if it is something that is already abandoned or will be proposed to be abandoned.  J. 

Kastner advised that it was abandoned and they put a new one in.  J. Porter stated that he is in favor. 

 

E. Thurow stated that he thinks the rezoning is an appropriate change. 

 

Public Comments of Public Hearing  
No comments 

 

Chairman Parkhurst closed public comment at 7:10 P.M. 

 

D. Moore stated that this is an area that is a hodgepodge of different uses and zonings and there is no 

clear trend of development or one set of uses that dominate in the area.  He stated that a down zoning 

of this nature seems appropriate given the pre-existing use of the property and he would be in favor. 

 

Motion D. Moore, second by R. Horrell, to recommend approval of R1D rezoning of 1176 Kishwaukee 

Valley Road based on the fact that there is no evidence that this is a property that would negatively 

affect neighboring property values, it is a pre-existing use of a residence and there is no benefit seen to 

keeping it as a business.  Given the mix of zoning and uses in the area it is appropriate to rezone to a 



Woodstock Plan Commission 

April 24, 2014 

Page 3 of 3 

 

less intensive use zoning district. A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: D. Fortin, R. Horrell, D. Moore, K. 

Parkhurst, J. Porter, E. Thurow. Nays: None. Absentees: William Clow, S. Gavers, D. Paluch. 

Abstentions: None.  

 

The public hearing was closed at 7:12 PM 

 

4.  DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 No items were discussed. 

 

5.  ADJOURNMENT  

Motion by J. Porter, second by R. Horrell, to adjourn the regular meeting of the Woodstock Plan 

Commission. Ayes: D. Fortin, R. Horrell, D. Moore, K. Parkhurst, J. Porter, E. Thurow. Nays: None. 

Absentees: William Clow, S. Gavers, D. Paluch. Abstentions: None.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:13 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell  

City Clerk 



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

       City of    

               
 

Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  

326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                j van lan du yt@wood stocki l .go v  

                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Jeff Van Landuyt, Assistant Public Works Director 

 

Re:  Approval of Ordinances for Temporary Traffic Regulations for 2014 Special  

  Events 

 

Date:  April 21, 2014 

 

The City of Woodstock has a long-standing tradition of supporting local community 

organizations and special events (e.g. this year will mark the 45
th

 annual Fair Diddley
®

 Craft 

Show in the Woodstock Square).  Along with these established events come requests for new 

events as demonstrated with the addition of Oktoberfest, Girls on the Run 5K, and Madness 

Manor (i.e. the Haunted Square) in 2013.  The variety and diversity of these events provide fun 

and educational venues for the City’s residents; they are a destination for non-residents; and they 

raise funds that benefit the local population and those in surrounding communities.   

 

There is no way of measuring the exact benefit that these community events provide to residents 

and the business community, but these events draw large numbers of new people to Woodstock 

each year and provide residents with a diverse variety of entertainment and activities that help to 

make Woodstock unique.  These events bring tourism to the City, help build neighborly 

relationships within the community, and showcase the community while at the same time 

providing a boost to the local economy. 

 

One way that the City supports these events is to enact temporary traffic regulations in areas 

where an event is to be held in order to make the area safe and protect residents, motorists, and 

event patrons.  The following events have received approval from the City Council in past years 

and in 2014 there are no significant changes proposed.  However, an ordinance authorizing 

specific traffic regulations for a limited time period does need annual review and approval.  

Event organizers are requesting, and the City staff concurs, that the following temporary 

ordinances would benefit the administration of each of the following special events:   

 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 6, 2014 City Council

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Manager's Report 23a



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

GIRLS ON THE RUN 5K OF NORTHWEST ILLINOIS (Sunday, May 18, 2014) 

Girls on the Run of Northwest Illinois hosted their first 5K here in Woodstock in 2013 with the 

support and approval of the City Council and City Administration.  The course that the 

organizers used was identical to the one that Family Health Partnership uses for their Care4 

Breast Cancer Run/Walk.  In order to accommodate this event and maintain the safety of all 

involved, a temporary no parking ordinance for the streets along the route of the course is being 

submitted for approval. 

 

MEMORIAL DAY PARADE (Monday, May 26, 2014) 

The Woodstock Jaycees and Woodstock VFW Post 5040 once again will sponsor a community 

parade and ceremony on Memorial Day.  In order to accommodate this event, temporary traffic 

regulations are appropriate to close streets, set up viewing areas, and to accommodate a staging 

area for the parade participants. 

 

REMEMBER OUR HEROES CAR SHOW (Saturday, June 28, 2014) 

Woodstock VFW Post 5040 plans to host a car show again in 2014.  With the exception of 2013, 

this has been an annual event that was supported and approved by the City Council and City 

Administration.  The car show is held in the VFW parking lot immediately adjacent to the Post 

building on Throop Street.  In order to provide additional space for the display of cars and to 

provide a safe environment for spectators, VFW Post 5040 requests the temporary use of the City 

parking lot east of Throop Street and south of the VFW Post.  There is no other approval 

necessary for this event other than the approval of an ordinance authorizing specific temporary 

traffic regulations related to the use of the Throop Street Parking Lot. 

 

FOURTH OF JULY (Friday, July 4, 2014) 

To provide for the safe movement of both pedestrians and vehicular traffic in and out of 

Emricson Park for the annual fireworks display, one-day parking regulations within the park and 

along area streets are needed.  These one-day parking regulations prevent cars from parking 

along the edge of the streets and roads (which could result in traffic obstructions), keep key areas 

within the park open and clear for traffic flow and emergency vehicles, and provide safe walking 

routes for the pedestrians.  Both the Woodstock Police Department and the Woodstock 

Fire/Rescue District believe that these parking restrictions are beneficial and should be 

continued. 

 

McHENRY COUNTY FAIR (Wednesday, July 30, 2014 thru Monday, August 4, 2014) 

Although the fair is held outside of the City Limits, the event does impact City streets.  

Previously the City has established temporary parking regulations on City streets near the 

fairgrounds to reduce traffic congestion, to maintain appropriate access for emergency vehicles, 

and to provide for the safe movement of both pedestrians and motorists. 

 



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

It is recommended that the following Ordinances establishing certain temporary parking 

and traffic regulations for special events during 2014 be adopted.  The scope and location of 

the Ordinances for 2014 are the same as authorized in the past. 

 

Ordinance identified as Document No. ____ establishing temporary parking restrictions for 

the Girls on the Run 5K  of Northwest Illinois on Sunday, May 18, 2014. 

 

Ordinance identified as Document No. ____ establishing temporary traffic and parking 

restrictions for the annual Memorial Day parade and ceremony on Monday, May 26, 2014. 

 

Ordinance identified as Document No. ____ establishing temporary traffic and parking 

restrictions for the VFW Remember Our Heroes Car Show on Saturday, June 28, 2014. 

 

Ordinance identified as Document No. ____ establishing certain temporary parking 

restrictions in and near Emricson Park on Friday, July 4, 2014. 

 

Ordinance identified as Document No. ____ establishing certain temporary parking 

restrictions for the McHenry County Fair from Wednesday, July 30, 2014 thru Monday, 

August 4, 2014. 

 

The review and approval for additional special events to be held during 2014 will be presented at 

a later date as needed. 

 

Cc: Roger Vidales  

 Chief Lowen 

 Chief Webster 

 Fair Association 

 Woodstock Jaycees 

 Woodstock VFW 

Girls on the Run of Northwest Illinois 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
1

mamraen
Typewritten Text
2

mamraen
Typewritten Text
3

mamraen
Typewritten Text
4

mamraen
Typewritten Text
5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING CERTAIN TEMPORARY PARKING RESTRICTIONS  

IN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS  

ON MAY 18, 2014 

 

WHEREAS, Raffel Road, Haydn Street, Sweetwater Drive, Roger Road, Manke Lane, 

and Ware Road are public thoroughfares in the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, 

Illinois; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is an appropriate exercise of the police power of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois to limit, regulate or otherwise control parking along 

said access drive and public streets in order to reduce hazards. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One.  That there is hereby imposed the following parking restrictions which 

shall be in effect from 5:00 a.m., to 1:00 p.m., on May 18, 2014: 

 

Location     Restriction 

 

Both sides of Raffel Road from  No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

Woodstock North High School to 

Manke Lane 

 

Both sides of Haydn Street from  No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

Raffel Road to Ware Road 

 

Both sides of Sweetwater Drive  No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

From Ware Road to Roger Road 

 

Both sides of Roger Road from  No Parking – Tow Away Zone 

Sweetwater Drive to Manke Lane 

 

Both sides of Manke Lane from    No Parking – Tow Away Zone 

Roger Road to Raffel Road 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.1



 Section One (Continued). 

 

Location     Restriction 

 

Both sides of Ware Road    No Parking – Tow Away Zone 

30’ east and west of the Haydn Street 

right-of-way line 

 

Section Two. That the Department of Public Works and its Director are hereby 

authorized and directed to place appropriate signs in the above designated areas to denote the 

parking restrictions herein established. 

 

Section Three. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict are hereby repealed 

to the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section Four. That this ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No._________ and 

shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and publication as is required 

by law.   

 

PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois 

and approved by me this 6
th

 day of May, 2014. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING CERTAIN TEMPORARY TRAFFIC RESTRICTIONS 
AND PARKING RESTRICTIONS FOR  

THE ANNUAL MEMORIAL DAY PARADE  
IN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK ON MONDAY, MAY 26, 2014 

 

WHEREAS, Calhoun Street and Tryon Street are public streets in the City of Woodstock; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parking lots at the southwesterly corner of Dean Street and Calhoun Street and on 

the east side of the Woodstock City Hall are provided for general public use; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock has determined that it is an appropriate use of said public 

parking lots, streets and public rights-of-way to close said streets and lots to all through traffic and to 

all parking on Monday, May 26, 2014 in order to hold an event and parade open to the general public 

as part of the annual Memorial Day services. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One. There are hereby imposed the following parking restrictions which shall be in 

effect from 5:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on May 26, 2014: 

 

      LOCATION      RESTRICTION 

Calhoun/Dean parking lot    No Parking – Tow Away Zone 

City Hall (east side) parking lot   Streets and parking lots to be closed 

Calhoun Street–Hayward to Throop [Throop St.  for public access 

 to be maintained as thru street]; Throop to   

 Dean [Dean St. to be maintained as thru 

 Street]; Dean to Jefferson    

Tryon Street-W. Jackson to South [South St. to 

 be maintained as thru street]; South to Dean   

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.2



Section Two.  That the Department of Public Works and its Director are hereby authorized 

and directed to place appropriate signs in the above designated locations to denote the parking 

restrictions herein established. 

 

Section Three.  That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict are hereby repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section Four. That this Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. __________ and shall 

be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication as is required by law. 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois and 

approved by me this 6th day of May, 2014. 

 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

____________________________________ 

Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

 

Attest: _______________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING CERTAIN TEMPORARY TRAFFIC AND PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS IN THE THROOP STREET PARKING LOT IN THE 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK ON SATURDAY, JUNE 28, 2014 

 

WHEREAS, the Throop Street parking lot located along the easterly side of Throop 

Street is designated for public use; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock has determined that it is an appropriate use of this 

parking lot for Woodstock VFW Post 5040 to close the parking lot to all parking on Saturday, 

June 28, 2014 to hold an event open to the general public. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One. There is hereby imposed the following parking restrictions which shall be 

in effect from 6:00 a.m., Saturday, June 28, 2014 to 12:01 a.m. on Sunday, June 29, 2014. 

 

       LOCATION     RESTRICTION 

Throop Street public parking lot -  No Parking  

along the east side of Throop Street  Parking lot to be closed for public access. 

between Church St. and Judd St. 

 

Section Two.  That the Department of Public Works and its Director are hereby 

authorized and directed to place appropriate signs in the above designated locations to denote the 

parking restrictions herein established. 

 

Section Three.  That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section Four.  That this Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. __________ and 

shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and publication as is required 

by law. 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois and 

approved by me this 6th day of May, 2014. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

____________________________________ 

Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

Attest: _______________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING CERTAIN TEMPORARY PARKING RESTRICTIONS  

IN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS  

ON JULY 4, 2014 

 

WHEREAS, the main access drive in Emricson Park is a public way within the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois; and, 

 

WHEREAS, South Street, Jackson Street, Duvall Drive, and Tara Drive are public thoroughfares in 

the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is an appropriate exercise of the police power of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, 

McHenry County, Illinois to limit, regulate or otherwise control parking along said access drive and 

public streets in order to reduce hazards. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, 

McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One.  That there are hereby imposed the following parking restrictions which shall 

be in effect from 12:01 a.m., to 11:50 p.m., on July 4, 2014: 

 

Location     Restriction 

 

All designated spaces along the north  No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

and east side of the main access drive 

in Emricson Park 

 

South Street parking lot, in Emricson Park No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

 

Both sides of South Street from Hill  No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

Street west to US Route 14 

 

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.4



Section One (Continued). 

 

Location     Restriction 

 

Both sides of Tara Drive from south  No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

right-of-way line of South Street to  

300’ to the south 

 

Both sides of Jackson Street from Hill No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

Street west to US Route 14 

 

Both sides of Duvall Drive from South No Parking – Tow Away Zone 

Street, then to the north clockwise to 

798 Duvall 

 

West side of Duvall Drive from 798   No Parking – Tow Away Zone 

Duvall Drive, then south to South Street 

 

Section Two. That the Department of Public Works and its Director are hereby authorized and 

directed to place appropriate signs in the above designated areas to denote the parking restrictions 

herein established. 

 

Section Three.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict are hereby repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

 

Section Four. That this ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No._________ and shall be in full 

force and effect from and after its passage, approval and publication as is required by law.   

 

PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois and 

approved by me this 6th day of May, 2014. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING CERTAIN TEMPORARY RESTRICTIONS 

ON PARKING ON VARIOUS PUBLIC STREETS IN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, 

McHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

 

WHEREAS, it is an appropriate exercise of the police power of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, 

McHenry County, Illinois, to regulate traffic on City streets; and to otherwise control parking along 

public streets to reduce hazards. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, 

McHenry County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

Section One.  That there are hereby imposed the following parking restrictions, which shall be in 

effect from 8:00 a.m. on Wednesday, July 30, 2014 until 8:00 a.m. on Monday, August 4, 2014: 

 

Location      Restriction 

 

Both sides of Country Club Road   No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

From Illinois Route 47 to Zimmerman 

 

Both sides of Leah Lane    No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

From Country Club Rd. to Zimmerman 

 

Both sides of  Zimmerman Road   No Parking - Tow Away Zone 

From Country Club Rd. to Leah Lane 

 

Section Two.  That the Public Works Department and its Director are hereby authorized and directed 

to place the appropriate signs authorized by these temporary traffic regulations. 

 

Section Three.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section Four.  That this ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. ________ and shall be in full 

force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.5



 

Passed by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and 

approved by me this 6th day of May, 2014. 

 

 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

 

 

Attest:_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 



 

Memo 
To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Paul N. Christensen, Finance Director 

Date: April 24, 2014 

Re: Electric Purchase for City Facilities 

On April 15, 2014, City of Woodstock Representatives attended a meeting with members of 

NIGEC, an organization of other McHenry County Governments established to purchase 

electric power for municipal-owned facilities.  At this meeting an online auction was held to 

bid for the group’s power needs for the next 3 years.  Members of the consortium decided to 

enter into two contracts with Constellation NewEnergy to provide electricity supply for a 

period of 18 and 36 months.  The reason that two contracts, which included differing 

expiration terms, were recommended is for NIGEAC to align the maturity dates for all of the 

represented accounts.  The previous bids and contracts were conducted at various times and 

have different expiration periods.  Thus in order for the consortium to be able to bid all of the 

accounts in the future at the same time, the group decided to stager the terms of these contracts 

to facilitate an alignment of the expiration dates.  This may allow the City in the future to 

execute one contract for all electrical power, which could translate into additional savings for 

the City. 

The first contract that NIGEC entered into was with Constellation NewEnergy and will 

include the City’s largest accounts (i.e., water and sewer treatment plants, and the recreation 

center totaling five accounts) for a total estimated demand of 8,741,400 kilowatt hours over an 

18-month period.  This contract will begin in November 2015, when the current contract is set 

to expire.  The rate secured in this agreement is $.05483 per kilowatt hour.  This contract is 

anticipated to save $75,800 from the ComEd bundled rate over the life of the contract.  In 

addition, the rate secured is $.0034 less per kilowatt than the existing power contract, which 

will result in a yearly estimated savings of $3,400 from the amount being paid currently. 

The second contract that NIGEC entered into was also with Constellation NewEnergy and 

will include the City’s mid-sized accounts (i.e., lift stations totaling 10 accounts) for a total 

estimated demand of 2,094,000 kilowatt hours over a 36-month period.  This contract will 

begin in April 2014 and as stated before will end in conjunction with the aforementioned 

contract.  The rate obtained is $.059168 per kilowatt hour.  The estimated savings over the 

ComEd bundled rate is expected to be $20,800.  As with the first contract, the rate secured is 

Finance Department  
       City of   

                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2269 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 6, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 23b



 

lower than the exiting rate and is expected to save the City $2,300 a year from the amount 

being currently paid. 

The total savings from both contracts is expected to save the City $96,500 over the life of the 

contracts from the ComEd bundled rate.  This savings represents a reduction in electric energy 

costs of 13.8%.   

When bidding out electric power, suppliers will only keep their bids open for a short period of 

time because of the volatility of the market.  Often this is no more than a couple of hours.  As 

such, the NIGEC agreement authorized by the City Council provides the City’s NIGEC 

representative the authority to accept the bids based on a two-thirds majority vote.  The City 

Manager is then authorized to execute the corresponding purchase agreements.  Once 

finalized, the City Administration is required to forward the executed agreements to the City 

Council for their ratification.   

Recommendations: 

It is the recommendation that the City Council ratify the executed attached contracts for 

electric power with Constellation NewEnergy for a period of 18 months and 36 months 

for the City’s large and mid-sized electric accounts, respectively. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

rstelford
Approved



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860274525 | Account Representative: E14987 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860274525 | Page - 1 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012           

 
    
                             

Constellation NewEnergy, Inc.  
Electricity Supply Agreement – Fixed Price Solutions 

City of Woodstock DBA Glenview Consulting (“Customer”) AND CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC. (“CNE”) AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms have the meanings set out in this Electricity Supply Agreement, including the attached General Terms and Conditions 
("Agreement"); generally the words "you" and "your" refer to the Customer listed above and the words "we" and "us" refer to CNE, unless the context clearly 
requires otherwise. 
Purchase and Sale of Electricity.  You will purchase and receive, and we will sell and supply all of your electricity requirements at the prices set forth below 
for each account identified in the Account Schedule below ("Account").  By signing this Agreement, you authorize us to enroll each Account with your UDC so 
that we can supply those Account(s).  You will take such actions as we request to allow us to enroll each Account in a timely manner. You agree that we may 
select such sources of energy as we deem appropriate to meet our obligations under the Agreement.  We will enroll each Account with the applicable UDC as 
being supplied by us and will take such other actions with the applicable UDC and ISO necessary for us to meet our obligations under the Agreement. 
The specific prices for each Account are set forth in the Account Schedule, below. 
You are also responsible to pay (1) Taxes - which we will pass through to you on your bill or as part of the price of electricity, as may be required by law, rule 
or regulation and (2) UDC charges for delivery/distribution services if we provide you a single bill that includes UDC charges.   Your prices are fixed for the 
existing term of this Agreement and only subject to change if there is a change in law, as described in Section 5 of the General Terms and Conditions below.  
The UDC charges (if any) and Taxes are charged to you as a "pass-through," which means they will change during the existing term of this Agreement if and 
as the related charges assessed or charged to us vary for any reason, including but not limited to the types of changes described above. 
Cost Components. For each of the items listed as “Fixed” below, this means the item is included in your contract prices as set forth in the Account Schedule. 
For each of the items listed as “Passed Through” below, this means that you will be charged the costs associated with the line item in accordance with the 
definitions of each item in Section 1, Definitions of the General Terms and Conditions. 

Energy Costs Fixed 

Ancillary Services And Other ISO Costs Fixed 

Auction Revenue Rights Credits Fixed 

Capacity Costs Fixed 

Transmission Costs  Fixed 

Transmission Loss Credits Fixed 

Line Loss Costs Fixed 

FERC Order 745 Costs Passed Through 
 

The contract prices contained in the Account Schedule include CNE’s credit costs and margin as well as Renewable Portfolio Standards Costs. Any applicable 
RMR Costs will be passed through to you. Except in the case of Transmission Costs, all other costs listed above as “Fixed” may be subject to change if there 
is a change in law, as described in Section 5 of the General Terms and Conditions below. 
Retail Trade Transactions.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, you may request the purchase of renewable energy certificates in an amount 
equal to a prescribed percentage of your load volume by entering into one or more Retail Trade Transactions (“RTTs”) between us.   If we both agree to the 
pricing and terms of the renewable energy certificates purchase, a separate RTT Confirmation signed by both of us will document each such purchase and be 
incorporated herein. 
Term.   This Agreement will become effective and binding after you have signed the Agreement and we have counter-signed.  Subject to successful 
enrollment of your Account(s), this Agreement shall commence on or about the date set forth under “Start Date”, and end on or about the date set forth under 
“End Date”, unless extended on a holdover basis as described in this Agreement. The actual Start Date is dependent on the UDC successfully enrolling the 
Account(s) and furnishing us with all necessary information regarding the Account(s) meter read cycle and meter read date(s).  The dates set forth in the 
Account Schedule below reflect UDC information available at that time or as otherwise estimated by us.  The actual meter read dates may occur on or about 
the dates set forth herein.  We will use commercially reasonable efforts to begin service to each Account(s) on the actual meter read date on or about the Start 
Date set forth herein.  If we are unable to timely enroll an Account, the Start Date will commence on the next regularly scheduled UDC meter read cycle date 
following successful enrollment.  The End Date will remain the same unless extended for a holdover term. We shall not be liable for any failure to enroll or drop 
an Account by the Start and End Date due to circumstances beyond our control.   We will not be responsible for any gaps in service that may occur between 
the termination of your service from a prior supplier and the commencement of supply from us. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to require or otherwise obligate us to offer to extend the term of this Agreement.  If following termination or 
expiration of this Agreement (whether in whole or in part), for any reason, some or all of the Accounts remain designated by the UDC as being supplied by us, 
we may continue to serve such Account(s) on a month-to-month holdover basis. During such holdover term, we will calculate your invoice as follows:  (Each 
Account’s metered usage, as adjusted by the applicable line loss factor) times (the applicable ISO-published Real Time Locational Based Marginal Price 
(“LMP”) (or in NYISO Zone J, the ISO-published Day Ahead LMP) + $.00525/kWh) + (a pass through of all costs and charges incurred by us for the retail 
delivery of energy to you) + Taxes.  This Agreement will continue to govern the service of such Accounts during such holdover term.  Either party may 

Agreement is Not 
Valid Unless 

Executed by CNE 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860274525 | Account Representative: E14987 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860274525 | Page - 2 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012           

terminate the holdover term at any time within its discretion at which time we will drop each Account as of the next possible meter read date to the then 
applicable tariff service, whether default service or otherwise.  
Your Invoice.  Your invoice will contain all charges applicable to your electricity usage, including Taxes (which are passed through to you). If you have elected 
to receive a single bill from us for one or more of the Account(s) served hereunder, we will invoice you for all UDC Charges and related Taxes for those 
Account(s) (“CNE Consolidated Billing”). If you have elected to receive a single bill from the UDC for one or more of the Account(s) served hereunder, the UDC 
will invoice you for all of our charges and all UDC Charges and related Taxes for those Account(s) (“UDC Consolidated Billing”). Otherwise, we will invoice you 
for all our charges and the UDC will invoice you for all UDC Charges and related Taxes for those Account(s) which we refer to as “Dual Billing.”  Initially all 
your Account(s) will be billed as follows, which may change based on your Account(s) eligibility: CNE Consolidated Billing.  All amounts charged are due in 
full within fortyfive (45) days of the invoice date, and we reserve the right to adjust amounts previously invoiced based upon supplemental or additional data 
we may receive from your UDC.  Your invoices will be based on actual data provided by the UDC, provided that if we do not receive actual data in a timely 
manner, we will make a good faith estimate using your historical usage data and other information.  Once we receive actual data we will reconcile the 
estimated charges and adjust them as needed in subsequent invoices.  If you fail to make payment by the due date, interest will accrue daily on outstanding 
amounts from the due date until the bill is paid in full at a rate of 1.5% per month, or the highest rate permitted by law, whichever is less; and we may withhold 
any payments due to the UDC until we receive such payments.   
Certain Warranties.  You warrant and represent that for Account(s) located in the State of Illinois, your aggregate consumption and usage during any 12 
month period is greater than 15,000 kilowatt-hours and that the electricity supplied under this Agreement is not for use at a residence. 
Notices.  All notices will be in writing and delivered by hand, certified mail, return receipt requested, or by express carrier to our respective business 
addresses.  Our business address is 1221 Lamar St, Suite 750, Houston, Texas 77010, Attn: Contracts Administration.  Either of us can change our address 
by notice to the other pursuant to this paragraph. 
Customer Service.  For questions about your invoice or our services, contact us at our Customer Service Department by calling toll-free 888-635-0827, or by 
e-mail at customercare@constellation.com.  Your prior authorization of us to your UDC as recipient of your current and historical energy billing and usage data 
will remain in effect during the entire term of this Agreement, including any renewal, unless you rescind the authorization upon written notice to us or by calling 
us at 1-888-635-0827.  We reserve the right to cancel this Agreement in the event you rescind the authorization. 
IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY, POWER OUTAGE OR WIRES AND EQUIPMENT SERVICE NEEDS, CONTACT YOUR APPLICABLE UDC AT: 

UDC Name UDC Abbreviation Contact Numbers 

Commonwealth Edison COMED Emergency: 8003347661 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK.] 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860274525 | Account Representative: E14987 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860274525 | Page - 3 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012           

 
Each party has caused this Agreement to be executed by its authorized representative on the respective dates written below.  
 

CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC.  
 
 
 
By:  
 
Name:    
Title:  
  
Address:     1221 Lamar St. Suite 750 
                    Houston, Texas 77010 
Attention:     Contracts Administration 
Facsimile:    (866) 470-0482 
Telephone:  (888) 635-0827   

Customer: City of Woodstock DBA Glenview Consulting  
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________________ 
 
Name:     Roscoe Stelford 
Title:         
Date:  
Address:    

    
Attention:  
Facsimile:   (815) 334-2269 
Telephone: (815) 338-2131 
Email Address: rstelford@woodstockil.gov 
 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860274525 | Account Representative: E14987 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860274525 | Page - 4 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC. All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012 

General Terms and Conditions 
1. Definitions. 
“Ancillary Services And Other ISO Costs” means for any billing period the 
applicable charges regarding ancillary services as set forth in the applicable 
ISO Open Access Transmission Tariff ("OATT") and for other ISO costs not 
otherwise included in any of the defined cost components in this Agreement.  
We will determine your monthly Ancillary Services And Other ISO Costs 
based on your $/kWh share of our cost for Ancillary Services And Other ISO 
Costs incurred with respect to all of our customers within the applicable ISO 
service territory or in the form of an otherwise reasonable allocation method 
as we may determine from time to time based on how Ancillary Services And 
Other ISO Costs are assessed by the ISO. 
“Auction Revenue Rights Credits” means revenue credits resulting from the 
annual financial transmission rights auction conducted by the ISO that are 
awarded to us with respect to our customers’ transmission peak load 
contribution.  If Auction Revenue Rights Credits are “Passed Through”, such 
credits shall be calculated as the monthly product of the (i) total Auction 
Revenue Rights Credits expressed in dollars per planning year for the 
applicable zone, as published by the ISO; divided by (ii) the total Network 
Service Peak Load for such zone, as published by the ISO; divided by (iii) the 
number of days in the applicable planning year; multiplied by (iv) by your 
applicable Network Service Peak Load; multiplied by (v) the number of days in 
the billing period or such other reasonable calculation method applied by us.  
“Capacity Costs” means a charge for fulfilling the capacity requirements for 
the Account(s) imposed by the ISO or otherwise. 
“Energy Costs” means a charge for the cost items included in the Locational 
Marginal Price for the ISO zone identified in the Account Schedule 
“FERC Order 745 Costs” means any costs or charges imposed by the ISO 
on load served by us in accordance with complying with the provisions of 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) in Order No. 745 18 CFR 
Part 35 (March 15, 2011). Any modifications or conditions to the treatment of 
FERC Order 745 Costs under the ISO tariff or otherwise shall be deemed a 
change in law pursuant to Section 5 of the General Terms and Conditions of 
this Agreement. 
“ISO” means the independent system operator or regional transmission 
organization responsible for the service territory governing an Account, or any 
successor or replacement entity. 
“Line Loss Costs” means the costs (to the extent not already captured in the 
applicable Energy Costs) we incur for each Account based on the kW/h 
difference between the UDC metered usage and the ISO settlement volumes.  
If Line Loss Costs are “Fixed,” the Line Loss Costs are included in the Energy 
Costs and will not be invoiced as a separate line item.  If Line Loss Costs are 
“Passed Through,” the Line Loss Costs will be invoiced as a separate line 
item and calculated based on the applicable fixed price or locational marginal 
price for the corresponding usage. 
“Non Time Of Use” or “NTOU” means all hours of each day. 
“Off Peak” means all hours other than Peak hours. 
“Peak” means the hours designated as peak from time to time by the UDC. 
“Renewable Portfolio Standards Costs” means the costs associated with 
meeting renewable portfolio standards costs at the levels required by currently 
applicable Law. If Renewable Portfolio Standards Costs are not included in 
the contract price, such costs for a particular month will be the product of (i) 
the Monthly RPS Price; and (ii) an Account’s monthly kWh usage. The 
Monthly RPS Price is the price of renewable portfolio standards compliance 
for the Account, for a particular month, fixed by us by reference to the 
renewable portfolio standards forward price curve for the state where the 
Account is located. 
“RMR Costs” or “Reliability-Must-Run Costs” means the generation 
deactivation charges and other such charges, if any, imposed by the ISO on 
load served in a particular load zone to recover the cost for any generation 

units that plan to retire but are required by the ISO to run for reliability 
purposes beyond their intended retirement date, in accordance with the 
applicable ISO rules and OATT provisions. 
“Taxes” means all federal, state, municipal and local taxes, duties, fees, 
levies, premiums or other charges imposed by any governmental authority, 
directly or indirectly, on or with respect to the electricity and related products 
and services provided under this Agreement, including any taxes enacted 
after the date we entered into this Agreement. 
“Transmission Costs” means the charge for Network Transmission Service 
and Transmission Cost Enhancement Charges, each as identified in the 
applicable OATT Tariff for the provision of transmission service by the ISO 
within the UDC’s service territory.  Beginning on June 1, 2013, several 
Pennsylvania UDCs (i.e. Met.Ed, Penelec, Penn-Power and West Penn-
Power) will be responsible for collecting the Transmission Cost Enhancement 
Charges on Customer’s Delivery Charges.  Our contract price(s) for Accounts 
in the aforementioned UDCs will reflect the cost for any applicable 
Transmission Cost Enhancement Charges, if any, until May 31, 2013.  If at 
any time during the term of this Agreement the aforementioned UDCs 
discontinue collecting Transmission Cost Enhancement Charges and we 
again become responsible for collecting them, we will pass those costs 
through to you. 
“Transmission Loss Credits” means your share of amounts credited to us 
by the ISO under the ISO’s marginal loss construct for the load served by us. 
“UDC” means your local electric distribution utility owning and/or controlling 
and maintaining the distribution system required for delivery of electricity to 
the Accounts. 
“UDC Charges” means all UDC costs, charges, and fees, due under UDC’s 
delivery services rates associated with your use of UDC’s distribution network, 
all as defined by the UDC tariffs, and any similar or related charges the UDC 
may impose from time to time. 
2.  Cash deposit and other security.  At any time, we may require that you 
provide information to us so that we may evaluate your creditworthiness. We 
reserve the right to require that you make a cash deposit or provide other 
security acceptable to us in an amount equal to two (2) times the amount of 
the highest monthly invoices for each Account during the twelve months 
immediately preceding our demand if your financial obligations to us increase 
under this Agreement, or if, in our opinion, your credit, payment history, or 
ability to pay your bills as they come due becomes a concern. You will deliver 
any required cash deposit or other required security (or any increase therein) 
within three (3) business days of our request. 
3.  Default under this Agreement.  You will be in default under this 
Agreement if you fail to: pay your bills on time and in full; provide cash 
deposits or other security as required by Section 2 above; or perform all 
material obligations under this Agreement and you do not cure such default 
within 5 days of written notice from us; or if you declare or file for bankruptcy 
or otherwise become insolvent or unable to pay your debts as they come due. 
We will be in default under this Agreement if we fail to perform all material 
obligations under this Agreement and do not cure such default within 5 days 
written notice from you, or if we declare or file for bankruptcy or otherwise 
become insolvent or unable to pay our debts as they come due.  
4.  Remedies upon default.  If you are in default under this Agreement, in 
addition to any other remedies available to us, we may terminate this 
Agreement entirely, or solely with respect to those Accounts adversely 
affected by such default, and switch your Account(s) back to UDC service 
(consistent with applicable regulations and UDC practices); and/or require that 
you compensate us for all losses we sustain due to your default, including the 
following: 
• payment of all amounts you owe us for electricity provided to you; 
• when the Agreement is terminated early (entirely or as to certain 
Accounts), payment of an amount (that we will calculate using our reasonable 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860274525 | Account Representative: E14987 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860274525 | Page - 5 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC. All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012 

judgment) equal to the positive difference between (A) the dollar amount you 
would have paid to us under this Agreement had it not been terminated early 
and (B) the dollar amount we could resell such electricity for to a third party 
under then-current market conditions; and 
• all costs (including attorneys’ fees, expenses and court costs) we 
incur in collecting amounts you owe us under this Agreement.  
The parties agree that any early termination payment determined in 
accordance with this Section is a reasonable approximation of harm or loss, 
and is not a penalty or punitive in any respect, and that neither party will be 
required to enter into a replacement transaction in order to determine or be 
entitled to a termination payment. 
5. Changes in law.  We may pass through or allocate, as the case may be, to 
you any increase or decrease in our costs related to the electricity and related 
products and services sold to you that results from the implementation of new, 
or changes (including changes to formula rate calculations) to existing, Laws, 
or other requirements or changes in administration or interpretation of Laws or 
other requirements. “Law” means any law, rule, regulation, ordinance, statute, 
judicial decision, administrative order, ISO business practices or protocol, 
UDC or ISO tariff, rule of any commission or agency with jurisdiction in the 
state in which the Accounts are located.  Such additional amounts will be 
included in subsequent invoices to you. The changes described in this Section 
may change any or all of the charges described in this Agreement, whether 
described as “fixed,” “variable,” “pass-through” or otherwise.  Your first bill 
reflecting increased costs will include a bill insert describing the increase in 
costs in reasonable detail. 
6.  Events beyond either of our reasonable control.  If something happens 
that is beyond either of our reasonable control that prevents either of us from 
performing our respective obligations under this Agreement, then whichever 
one of us cannot perform will be relieved from performance until the situation 
is resolved.  Examples of such events include: acts of God, fire, flood, 
hurricane, war, terrorism; declaration of emergency by a governmental entity, 
the ISO or the UDC; curtailment, disruption or interruption of electricity 
transmission, distribution or supply; regulatory, administrative, or legislative 
action, or action or restraint by court order or other governmental entity; 
actions taken by third parties not under your or our control, such as the ISO or 
a UDC. Such events shall not excuse failure to make payments due in a 
timely manner for electricity supplied to you prior to such event. Further, if 
such an event prevents or makes it impossible or impracticable for the 
claiming party to carry out any obligation under this Agreement due to the 
events beyond either of our reasonable control for more than 30 days, then 
whichever one of us whose performance was not prevented by such events 
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without penalty upon 30 days’ 
written notice to the other. 
7.  Indemnification obligations.  We will have no liability or responsibility for 
matters within the control of the UDC or the ISO-controlled grid, which include 
maintenance of electric lines and systems, service interruptions, loss or 
termination of service, deterioration of electric services, or meter readings.  
EACH PARTY (THE “INDEMNIFYING PARTY”) WILL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY 
AND HOLD THE OTHER PARTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS 
(INCLUDING CLAIMS FOR PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, OR PROPERTY 
DAMAGE), LOSSES, EXPENSES (INCLUDING REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES), DAMAGES, SUITS, CAUSES OF ACTION AND 
JUDGMENTS OF ANY KIND TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE 
NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF THE INDEMNIFYING 
PARTY.  
8.  Limitation on Liability.  IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY OR ANY 
OF ITS RESPECTIVE AFFILIATED COMPANIES BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST OPPORTUNITIES 
OR LOST PROFITS. Each party’s total liability related to this Agreement, 

whether arising under breach of contract, tort, strict liability or otherwise, will 
be limited to direct, actual damages. Direct, actual damages payable to us will 
reflect the early termination payment calculation in Section 4.  Each party 
agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate damages it may 
incur. NO WARRANTY, DUTY, OR REMEDY, WHETHER EXPRESSED, 
IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, ON OUR PART IS GIVEN OR INTENDED TO 
ARISE OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR 
USE. 
9.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE GOVERNED BY 
AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE 
IN WHICH ANY ACCOUNT IS LOCATED, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO 
ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW PROVISIONS, AND ANY CONTROVERSY OR 
CLAIM ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE 
SETTLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EXPRESS TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT BY A COURT LOCATED IN SUCH STATE.  IF THE MATTER 
AT ISSUE INVOLVES ACCOUNTS OR MATTERS IN MORE THAN ONE 
STATE, THE GOVERNING JURISDICTION AND VENUE SHALL BE 
DEEMED TO BE NEW YORK.  TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY 
APPLICABLE LAW, WE ALSO BOTH AGREE IRREVOCABLY AND 
UNCONDITIONALLY TO WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY OR TO 
INITIATE OR BECOME A PARTY TO ANY CLASS ACTION CLAIMS WITH 
RESPECT TO ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR 
THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT. 

10. Relationship of Parties.  We are an independent contractor, and nothing 
in this Agreement establishes a joint venture, fiduciary relationship, 
partnership or other joint undertaking.  We are not acting as your consultant or 
advisor, and you will not rely on us in evaluating the advantages or 
disadvantages of any specific product or service, predictions about future 
energy prices, or any other matter.  Your decision to enter into this Agreement 
and any other decisions or actions you may take is and will be based solely 
upon your own analysis (or that of your advisors) and not on information or 
statements from us.  
11. Confidentiality.  Consistent with applicable regulatory requirements, we 
will hold in confidence all information obtained by us from you related to the 
provision of services under this Agreement and which concern your energy 
characteristics and use patterns, except that we may, consistent with 
applicable law and regulation, disclose such information to our affiliates and 
such affiliates’ employees, agents, advisors, and independent contractors.  
Except as otherwise required by law, you will agree to keep confidential the 
terms of our Agreement, including price.  
12. Miscellaneous Provisions.  If in any circumstance we do not provide 
notice of, or object to, any default on your part, such situation will not 
constitute a waiver of any future default of any kind.  If any of this Agreement 
is held legally invalid, the remainder will not be affected and will be valid and 
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity, and there will be 
deemed substituted for the invalid provisions such provisions as will most 
nearly carry out our mutual intent as expressed in this Agreement.  You may 
not assign or otherwise transfer any of your rights or obligations under this 
Agreement without our prior written consent.  Any such attempted transfer will 
be void.  We may assign our rights and obligations under this Agreement.  
This Agreement contains the entire agreement between both of us, 
supersedes any other agreements, discussions or understandings (whether 
written or oral) regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, and may not 
be contradicted by any prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreement.  
A facsimile or e-mailed copy with your signature will be considered an original 
for all purposes, and you will provide original signed copies upon request.  
Each party authorizes the other party to affix an ink or digital stamp of its 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860274525 | Account Representative: E14987 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860274525 | Page - 6 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC. All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012 

signature to this Agreement, and agrees to be bound by a document executed 
in such a manner.  The parties acknowledge that any document generated by 
the parties with respect to this Agreement, including this Agreement, may be 
imaged and stored electronically and such imaged documents may be 
introduced as evidence in any proceeding as if such were original business 
records and neither party shall contest their admissibility as evidence in any 
proceeding. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, no 
amendment (including in form of a purchase order you send us) to this 
Agreement will be valid or given any effect unless signed by both of us. 
Applicable provisions of this Agreement will continue in effect after termination 
or expiration of this Agreement to the extent necessary, including those for 
billing adjustments and payments, indemnification, limitations of liability, and 
dispute resolution.  This Agreement is a “forward contract” and we are a 
“forward contract merchant” under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, as amended.  
Further, we are not providing advice regarding “commodity interests”, 
including futures contracts and commodity options or any other matter, which 
would cause us to be a commodity trading advisor under the U.S. Commodity 
Exchange Act, as amended.  



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860274525 | Account Representative: E14987 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860274525 | Page - 7 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.      Std Short Form_v.2010_ Rev. Oct-27-2012            

 
 
    

ACCOUNT SCHEDULE: 
For:  City of Woodstock DBA Glenview Consulting 

The pricing set forth below is only valid until 5:00 PM Central Prevailing Time on 4/15/2014 
 

CNE shall have no obligation to enroll or supply electricity to any account(s) that are not identified on the Account Schedule below. 
Please verify that your specific information is COMPLETE and ACCURATE. 

Your review and acceptance of this information will help ensure accurate future invoices 
 

Notes: Accounts listed in the Account(s) Schedule may be updated or replaced with a new account number issued by the UDC, ISO or other entity. 
 

TO ACCEPT THE PRICING BELOW, PLEASE FAX A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT TO US AT (866) 470-0482. 
 
          No. of Service Accounts: 5 
 

UDC UDC Account 
Number Service Address Start Date End Date Energy Price Non TOU 

($/kWh) 

COMED 0843065029 800 Dieckman Street, Woodstock, IL, 
600989292 11/02/2015 05/04/2017 $ 0.054828 

COMED 2113140008 1965 Tappan Street, Woodstock, IL, 
600982464 10/30/2015 05/03/2017 $ 0.054828 

COMED 4214039035 820 Lake Avenue, Woodstock, IL, 600984257 11/03/2015 05/05/2017 $ 0.054828 

COMED 0030164035 211 West First Street, Woodstock, IL, 60098 11/02/2015 05/04/2017 $ 0.054828 

COMED 0297088067 1500 N. Seminary, Woodstock, IL, 600982747 10/30/2015 05/03/2017 $ 0.054828 

 
 

 
Payments to Certain Third-Parties: You acknowledge and understand that: 
o We are making a payment to World Energy Solutions, Inc. in connection with its efforts to facilitate our entering into this Agreement; and  
o Your price reflects the fee we are paying to World Energy Solutions, Inc. 
o World Energy Solutions, Inc. is acting on your behalf as your representative and is not a representative or agent of ours. 

You should direct any questions regarding such fee to World Energy Solutions, Inc.. 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860699729 | Account Representative: E11086 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860699729 | Page - 1 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012           

 
    
                             

Constellation NewEnergy, Inc.  
Electricity Supply Agreement – Fixed Price Solutions 

City of Woodstock DBA Glenview Consulting (“Customer”) AND CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC. (“CNE”) AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms have the meanings set out in this Electricity Supply Agreement, including the attached General Terms and Conditions 
("Agreement"); generally the words "you" and "your" refer to the Customer listed above and the words "we" and "us" refer to CNE, unless the context clearly 
requires otherwise. 
Purchase and Sale of Electricity.  You will purchase and receive, and we will sell and supply all of your electricity requirements at the prices set forth below 
for each account identified in the Account Schedule below ("Account").  By signing this Agreement, you authorize us to enroll each Account with your UDC so 
that we can supply those Account(s).  You will take such actions as we request to allow us to enroll each Account in a timely manner. You agree that we may 
select such sources of energy as we deem appropriate to meet our obligations under the Agreement.  We will enroll each Account with the applicable UDC as 
being supplied by us and will take such other actions with the applicable UDC and ISO necessary for us to meet our obligations under the Agreement. 
The specific prices for each Account are set forth in the Account Schedule, below. 
You are also responsible to pay (1) Taxes - which we will pass through to you on your bill or as part of the price of electricity, as may be required by law, rule 
or regulation and (2) UDC charges for delivery/distribution services if we provide you a single bill that includes UDC charges.   Your prices are fixed for the 
existing term of this Agreement and only subject to change if there is a change in law, as described in Section 5 of the General Terms and Conditions below.  
The UDC charges (if any) and Taxes are charged to you as a "pass-through," which means they will change during the existing term of this Agreement if and 
as the related charges assessed or charged to us vary for any reason, including but not limited to the types of changes described above. 
Cost Components. For each of the items listed as “Fixed” below, this means the item is included in your contract prices as set forth in the Account Schedule. 
For each of the items listed as “Passed Through” below, this means that you will be charged the costs associated with the line item in accordance with the 
definitions of each item in Section 1, Definitions of the General Terms and Conditions. 

Energy Costs Fixed 

Ancillary Services And Other ISO Costs Fixed 

Auction Revenue Rights Credits Fixed 

Capacity Costs Fixed 

Transmission Costs  Fixed 

Transmission Loss Credits Fixed 

Line Loss Costs Fixed 

FERC Order 745 Costs Passed Through 
 

The contract prices contained in the Account Schedule include CNE’s credit costs and margin as well as Renewable Portfolio Standards Costs. Any applicable 
RMR Costs will be passed through to you. Except in the case of Transmission Costs, all other costs listed above as “Fixed” may be subject to change if there 
is a change in law, as described in Section 5 of the General Terms and Conditions below. 
Retail Trade Transactions.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, you may request the purchase of renewable energy certificates in an amount 
equal to a prescribed percentage of your load volume by entering into one or more Retail Trade Transactions (“RTTs”) between us.   If we both agree to the 
pricing and terms of the renewable energy certificates purchase, a separate RTT Confirmation signed by both of us will document each such purchase and be 
incorporated herein. 
Term.   This Agreement will become effective and binding after you have signed the Agreement and we have counter-signed.  Subject to successful 
enrollment of your Account(s), this Agreement shall commence on or about the date set forth under “Start Date”, and end on or about the date set forth under 
“End Date”, unless extended on a holdover basis as described in this Agreement. The actual Start Date is dependent on the UDC successfully enrolling the 
Account(s) and furnishing us with all necessary information regarding the Account(s) meter read cycle and meter read date(s).  The dates set forth in the 
Account Schedule below reflect UDC information available at that time or as otherwise estimated by us.  The actual meter read dates may occur on or about 
the dates set forth herein.  We will use commercially reasonable efforts to begin service to each Account(s) on the actual meter read date on or about the Start 
Date set forth herein.  If we are unable to timely enroll an Account, the Start Date will commence on the next regularly scheduled UDC meter read cycle date 
following successful enrollment.  The End Date will remain the same unless extended for a holdover term. We shall not be liable for any failure to enroll or drop 
an Account by the Start and End Date due to circumstances beyond our control.   We will not be responsible for any gaps in service that may occur between 
the termination of your service from a prior supplier and the commencement of supply from us. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to require or otherwise obligate us to offer to extend the term of this Agreement.  If following termination or 
expiration of this Agreement (whether in whole or in part), for any reason, some or all of the Accounts remain designated by the UDC as being supplied by us, 
we may continue to serve such Account(s) on a month-to-month holdover basis. During such holdover term, we will calculate your invoice as follows:  (Each 
Account’s metered usage, as adjusted by the applicable line loss factor) times (the applicable ISO-published Real Time Locational Based Marginal Price 
(“LMP”) (or in NYISO Zone J, the ISO-published Day Ahead LMP) + $.00525/kWh) + (a pass through of all costs and charges incurred by us for the retail 
delivery of energy to you) + Taxes.  This Agreement will continue to govern the service of such Accounts during such holdover term.  Either party may 

Agreement is Not 
Valid Unless 

Executed by CNE 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860699729 | Account Representative: E11086 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860699729 | Page - 2 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012           

terminate the holdover term at any time within its discretion at which time we will drop each Account as of the next possible meter read date to the then 
applicable tariff service, whether default service or otherwise.  
Your Invoice.  Your invoice will contain all charges applicable to your electricity usage, including Taxes (which are passed through to you). If you have elected 
to receive a single bill from us for one or more of the Account(s) served hereunder, we will invoice you for all UDC Charges and related Taxes for those 
Account(s) (“CNE Consolidated Billing”). If you have elected to receive a single bill from the UDC for one or more of the Account(s) served hereunder, the UDC 
will invoice you for all of our charges and all UDC Charges and related Taxes for those Account(s) (“UDC Consolidated Billing”). Otherwise, we will invoice you 
for all our charges and the UDC will invoice you for all UDC Charges and related Taxes for those Account(s) which we refer to as “Dual Billing.”  Initially all 
your Account(s) will be billed as follows, which may change based on your Account(s) eligibility: CNE Consolidated Billing.  All amounts charged are due in 
full within fortyfive (45) days of the invoice date, and we reserve the right to adjust amounts previously invoiced based upon supplemental or additional data 
we may receive from your UDC.  Your invoices will be based on actual data provided by the UDC, provided that if we do not receive actual data in a timely 
manner, we will make a good faith estimate using your historical usage data and other information.  Once we receive actual data we will reconcile the 
estimated charges and adjust them as needed in subsequent invoices.  If you fail to make payment by the due date, interest will accrue daily on outstanding 
amounts from the due date until the bill is paid in full at a rate of 1.5% per month, or the highest rate permitted by law, whichever is less; and we may withhold 
any payments due to the UDC until we receive such payments.   
Certain Warranties.  You warrant and represent that for Account(s) located in the State of Illinois, your aggregate consumption and usage during any 12 
month period is greater than 15,000 kilowatt-hours and that the electricity supplied under this Agreement is not for use at a residence. 
Notices.  All notices will be in writing and delivered by hand, certified mail, return receipt requested, or by express carrier to our respective business 
addresses.  Our business address is 1221 Lamar St, Suite 750, Houston, Texas 77010, Attn: Contracts Administration.  Either of us can change our address 
by notice to the other pursuant to this paragraph. 
Customer Service.  For questions about your invoice or our services, contact us at our Customer Service Department by calling toll-free 888-635-0827, or by 
e-mail at customercare@constellation.com.  Your prior authorization of us to your UDC as recipient of your current and historical energy billing and usage data 
will remain in effect during the entire term of this Agreement, including any renewal, unless you rescind the authorization upon written notice to us or by calling 
us at 1-888-635-0827.  We reserve the right to cancel this Agreement in the event you rescind the authorization. 
IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY, POWER OUTAGE OR WIRES AND EQUIPMENT SERVICE NEEDS, CONTACT YOUR APPLICABLE UDC AT: 

UDC Name UDC Abbreviation Contact Numbers 

Commonwealth Edison COMED Emergency: 8003347661 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK.] 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860699729 | Account Representative: E11086 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860699729 | Page - 3 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012           

 
Each party has caused this Agreement to be executed by its authorized representative on the respective dates written below.  
 

CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC.  
 
 
 
By:  
 
Name:    
Title:  
  
Address:     1221 Lamar St. Suite 750 
                    Houston, Texas 77010 
Attention:     Contracts Administration 
Facsimile:    (866) 470-0482 
Telephone:  (888) 635-0827   

Customer: City of Woodstock DBA Glenview Consulting  
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________________ 
 
Name:     Roscoe Stelford 
Title:         
Date:  
Address:    

    
Attention:  
Facsimile:   (815) 334-2269 
Telephone: (815) 338-2131 
Email Address: rstelford@woodstockil.gov 
 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860699729 | Account Representative: E11086 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860699729 | Page - 4 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC. All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012 

General Terms and Conditions 
1. Definitions. 
“Ancillary Services And Other ISO Costs” means for any billing period the 
applicable charges regarding ancillary services as set forth in the applicable 
ISO Open Access Transmission Tariff ("OATT") and for other ISO costs not 
otherwise included in any of the defined cost components in this Agreement.  
We will determine your monthly Ancillary Services And Other ISO Costs 
based on your $/kWh share of our cost for Ancillary Services And Other ISO 
Costs incurred with respect to all of our customers within the applicable ISO 
service territory or in the form of an otherwise reasonable allocation method 
as we may determine from time to time based on how Ancillary Services And 
Other ISO Costs are assessed by the ISO. 
“Auction Revenue Rights Credits” means revenue credits resulting from the 
annual financial transmission rights auction conducted by the ISO that are 
awarded to us with respect to our customers’ transmission peak load 
contribution.  If Auction Revenue Rights Credits are “Passed Through”, such 
credits shall be calculated as the monthly product of the (i) total Auction 
Revenue Rights Credits expressed in dollars per planning year for the 
applicable zone, as published by the ISO; divided by (ii) the total Network 
Service Peak Load for such zone, as published by the ISO; divided by (iii) the 
number of days in the applicable planning year; multiplied by (iv) by your 
applicable Network Service Peak Load; multiplied by (v) the number of days in 
the billing period or such other reasonable calculation method applied by us.  
“Capacity Costs” means a charge for fulfilling the capacity requirements for 
the Account(s) imposed by the ISO or otherwise. 
“Energy Costs” means a charge for the cost items included in the Locational 
Marginal Price for the ISO zone identified in the Account Schedule 
“FERC Order 745 Costs” means any costs or charges imposed by the ISO 
on load served by us in accordance with complying with the provisions of 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) in Order No. 745 18 CFR 
Part 35 (March 15, 2011). Any modifications or conditions to the treatment of 
FERC Order 745 Costs under the ISO tariff or otherwise shall be deemed a 
change in law pursuant to Section 5 of the General Terms and Conditions of 
this Agreement. 
“ISO” means the independent system operator or regional transmission 
organization responsible for the service territory governing an Account, or any 
successor or replacement entity. 
“Line Loss Costs” means the costs (to the extent not already captured in the 
applicable Energy Costs) we incur for each Account based on the kW/h 
difference between the UDC metered usage and the ISO settlement volumes.  
If Line Loss Costs are “Fixed,” the Line Loss Costs are included in the Energy 
Costs and will not be invoiced as a separate line item.  If Line Loss Costs are 
“Passed Through,” the Line Loss Costs will be invoiced as a separate line 
item and calculated based on the applicable fixed price or locational marginal 
price for the corresponding usage. 
“Non Time Of Use” or “NTOU” means all hours of each day. 
“Off Peak” means all hours other than Peak hours. 
“Peak” means the hours designated as peak from time to time by the UDC. 
“Renewable Portfolio Standards Costs” means the costs associated with 
meeting renewable portfolio standards costs at the levels required by currently 
applicable Law. If Renewable Portfolio Standards Costs are not included in 
the contract price, such costs for a particular month will be the product of (i) 
the Monthly RPS Price; and (ii) an Account’s monthly kWh usage. The 
Monthly RPS Price is the price of renewable portfolio standards compliance 
for the Account, for a particular month, fixed by us by reference to the 
renewable portfolio standards forward price curve for the state where the 
Account is located. 
“RMR Costs” or “Reliability-Must-Run Costs” means the generation 
deactivation charges and other such charges, if any, imposed by the ISO on 
load served in a particular load zone to recover the cost for any generation 

units that plan to retire but are required by the ISO to run for reliability 
purposes beyond their intended retirement date, in accordance with the 
applicable ISO rules and OATT provisions. 
“Taxes” means all federal, state, municipal and local taxes, duties, fees, 
levies, premiums or other charges imposed by any governmental authority, 
directly or indirectly, on or with respect to the electricity and related products 
and services provided under this Agreement, including any taxes enacted 
after the date we entered into this Agreement. 
“Transmission Costs” means the charge for Network Transmission Service 
and Transmission Cost Enhancement Charges, each as identified in the 
applicable OATT Tariff for the provision of transmission service by the ISO 
within the UDC’s service territory.  Beginning on June 1, 2013, several 
Pennsylvania UDCs (i.e. Met.Ed, Penelec, Penn-Power and West Penn-
Power) will be responsible for collecting the Transmission Cost Enhancement 
Charges on Customer’s Delivery Charges.  Our contract price(s) for Accounts 
in the aforementioned UDCs will reflect the cost for any applicable 
Transmission Cost Enhancement Charges, if any, until May 31, 2013.  If at 
any time during the term of this Agreement the aforementioned UDCs 
discontinue collecting Transmission Cost Enhancement Charges and we 
again become responsible for collecting them, we will pass those costs 
through to you. 
“Transmission Loss Credits” means your share of amounts credited to us 
by the ISO under the ISO’s marginal loss construct for the load served by us. 
“UDC” means your local electric distribution utility owning and/or controlling 
and maintaining the distribution system required for delivery of electricity to 
the Accounts. 
“UDC Charges” means all UDC costs, charges, and fees, due under UDC’s 
delivery services rates associated with your use of UDC’s distribution network, 
all as defined by the UDC tariffs, and any similar or related charges the UDC 
may impose from time to time. 
2.  Cash deposit and other security.  At any time, we may require that you 
provide information to us so that we may evaluate your creditworthiness. We 
reserve the right to require that you make a cash deposit or provide other 
security acceptable to us in an amount equal to two (2) times the amount of 
the highest monthly invoices for each Account during the twelve months 
immediately preceding our demand if your financial obligations to us increase 
under this Agreement, or if, in our opinion, your credit, payment history, or 
ability to pay your bills as they come due becomes a concern. You will deliver 
any required cash deposit or other required security (or any increase therein) 
within three (3) business days of our request. 
3.  Default under this Agreement.  You will be in default under this 
Agreement if you fail to: pay your bills on time and in full; provide cash 
deposits or other security as required by Section 2 above; or perform all 
material obligations under this Agreement and you do not cure such default 
within 5 days of written notice from us; or if you declare or file for bankruptcy 
or otherwise become insolvent or unable to pay your debts as they come due. 
We will be in default under this Agreement if we fail to perform all material 
obligations under this Agreement and do not cure such default within 5 days 
written notice from you, or if we declare or file for bankruptcy or otherwise 
become insolvent or unable to pay our debts as they come due.  
4.  Remedies upon default.  If you are in default under this Agreement, in 
addition to any other remedies available to us, we may terminate this 
Agreement entirely, or solely with respect to those Accounts adversely 
affected by such default, and switch your Account(s) back to UDC service 
(consistent with applicable regulations and UDC practices); and/or require that 
you compensate us for all losses we sustain due to your default, including the 
following: 
• payment of all amounts you owe us for electricity provided to you; 
• when the Agreement is terminated early (entirely or as to certain 
Accounts), payment of an amount (that we will calculate using our reasonable 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860699729 | Account Representative: E11086 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860699729 | Page - 5 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC. All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012 

judgment) equal to the positive difference between (A) the dollar amount you 
would have paid to us under this Agreement had it not been terminated early 
and (B) the dollar amount we could resell such electricity for to a third party 
under then-current market conditions; and 
• all costs (including attorneys’ fees, expenses and court costs) we 
incur in collecting amounts you owe us under this Agreement.  
The parties agree that any early termination payment determined in 
accordance with this Section is a reasonable approximation of harm or loss, 
and is not a penalty or punitive in any respect, and that neither party will be 
required to enter into a replacement transaction in order to determine or be 
entitled to a termination payment. 
5. Changes in law.  We may pass through or allocate, as the case may be, to 
you any increase or decrease in our costs related to the electricity and related 
products and services sold to you that results from the implementation of new, 
or changes (including changes to formula rate calculations) to existing, Laws, 
or other requirements or changes in administration or interpretation of Laws or 
other requirements. “Law” means any law, rule, regulation, ordinance, statute, 
judicial decision, administrative order, ISO business practices or protocol, 
UDC or ISO tariff, rule of any commission or agency with jurisdiction in the 
state in which the Accounts are located.  Such additional amounts will be 
included in subsequent invoices to you. The changes described in this Section 
may change any or all of the charges described in this Agreement, whether 
described as “fixed,” “variable,” “pass-through” or otherwise.  Your first bill 
reflecting increased costs will include a bill insert describing the increase in 
costs in reasonable detail. 
6.  Events beyond either of our reasonable control.  If something happens 
that is beyond either of our reasonable control that prevents either of us from 
performing our respective obligations under this Agreement, then whichever 
one of us cannot perform will be relieved from performance until the situation 
is resolved.  Examples of such events include: acts of God, fire, flood, 
hurricane, war, terrorism; declaration of emergency by a governmental entity, 
the ISO or the UDC; curtailment, disruption or interruption of electricity 
transmission, distribution or supply; regulatory, administrative, or legislative 
action, or action or restraint by court order or other governmental entity; 
actions taken by third parties not under your or our control, such as the ISO or 
a UDC. Such events shall not excuse failure to make payments due in a 
timely manner for electricity supplied to you prior to such event. Further, if 
such an event prevents or makes it impossible or impracticable for the 
claiming party to carry out any obligation under this Agreement due to the 
events beyond either of our reasonable control for more than 30 days, then 
whichever one of us whose performance was not prevented by such events 
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without penalty upon 30 days’ 
written notice to the other. 
7.  Indemnification obligations.  We will have no liability or responsibility for 
matters within the control of the UDC or the ISO-controlled grid, which include 
maintenance of electric lines and systems, service interruptions, loss or 
termination of service, deterioration of electric services, or meter readings.  
EACH PARTY (THE “INDEMNIFYING PARTY”) WILL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY 
AND HOLD THE OTHER PARTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS 
(INCLUDING CLAIMS FOR PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, OR PROPERTY 
DAMAGE), LOSSES, EXPENSES (INCLUDING REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES), DAMAGES, SUITS, CAUSES OF ACTION AND 
JUDGMENTS OF ANY KIND TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE 
NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF THE INDEMNIFYING 
PARTY.  
8.  Limitation on Liability.  IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY OR ANY 
OF ITS RESPECTIVE AFFILIATED COMPANIES BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST OPPORTUNITIES 
OR LOST PROFITS. Each party’s total liability related to this Agreement, 

whether arising under breach of contract, tort, strict liability or otherwise, will 
be limited to direct, actual damages. Direct, actual damages payable to us will 
reflect the early termination payment calculation in Section 4.  Each party 
agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate damages it may 
incur. NO WARRANTY, DUTY, OR REMEDY, WHETHER EXPRESSED, 
IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, ON OUR PART IS GIVEN OR INTENDED TO 
ARISE OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR 
USE. 
9.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE GOVERNED BY 
AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE 
IN WHICH ANY ACCOUNT IS LOCATED, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO 
ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW PROVISIONS, AND ANY CONTROVERSY OR 
CLAIM ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE 
SETTLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EXPRESS TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT BY A COURT LOCATED IN SUCH STATE.  IF THE MATTER 
AT ISSUE INVOLVES ACCOUNTS OR MATTERS IN MORE THAN ONE 
STATE, THE GOVERNING JURISDICTION AND VENUE SHALL BE 
DEEMED TO BE NEW YORK.  TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY 
APPLICABLE LAW, WE ALSO BOTH AGREE IRREVOCABLY AND 
UNCONDITIONALLY TO WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY OR TO 
INITIATE OR BECOME A PARTY TO ANY CLASS ACTION CLAIMS WITH 
RESPECT TO ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR 
THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT. 

10. Relationship of Parties.  We are an independent contractor, and nothing 
in this Agreement establishes a joint venture, fiduciary relationship, 
partnership or other joint undertaking.  We are not acting as your consultant or 
advisor, and you will not rely on us in evaluating the advantages or 
disadvantages of any specific product or service, predictions about future 
energy prices, or any other matter.  Your decision to enter into this Agreement 
and any other decisions or actions you may take is and will be based solely 
upon your own analysis (or that of your advisors) and not on information or 
statements from us.  
11. Confidentiality.  Consistent with applicable regulatory requirements, we 
will hold in confidence all information obtained by us from you related to the 
provision of services under this Agreement and which concern your energy 
characteristics and use patterns, except that we may, consistent with 
applicable law and regulation, disclose such information to our affiliates and 
such affiliates’ employees, agents, advisors, and independent contractors.  
Except as otherwise required by law, you will agree to keep confidential the 
terms of our Agreement, including price.  
12. Miscellaneous Provisions.  If in any circumstance we do not provide 
notice of, or object to, any default on your part, such situation will not 
constitute a waiver of any future default of any kind.  If any of this Agreement 
is held legally invalid, the remainder will not be affected and will be valid and 
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity, and there will be 
deemed substituted for the invalid provisions such provisions as will most 
nearly carry out our mutual intent as expressed in this Agreement.  You may 
not assign or otherwise transfer any of your rights or obligations under this 
Agreement without our prior written consent.  Any such attempted transfer will 
be void.  We may assign our rights and obligations under this Agreement.  
This Agreement contains the entire agreement between both of us, 
supersedes any other agreements, discussions or understandings (whether 
written or oral) regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, and may not 
be contradicted by any prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreement.  
A facsimile or e-mailed copy with your signature will be considered an original 
for all purposes, and you will provide original signed copies upon request.  
Each party authorizes the other party to affix an ink or digital stamp of its 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860699729 | Account Representative: E11086 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860699729 | Page - 6 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC. All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.   Std.  Short Form_v.2010_Rev. Oct-27-2012 

signature to this Agreement, and agrees to be bound by a document executed 
in such a manner.  The parties acknowledge that any document generated by 
the parties with respect to this Agreement, including this Agreement, may be 
imaged and stored electronically and such imaged documents may be 
introduced as evidence in any proceeding as if such were original business 
records and neither party shall contest their admissibility as evidence in any 
proceeding. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, no 
amendment (including in form of a purchase order you send us) to this 
Agreement will be valid or given any effect unless signed by both of us. 
Applicable provisions of this Agreement will continue in effect after termination 
or expiration of this Agreement to the extent necessary, including those for 
billing adjustments and payments, indemnification, limitations of liability, and 
dispute resolution.  This Agreement is a “forward contract” and we are a 
“forward contract merchant” under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, as amended.  
Further, we are not providing advice regarding “commodity interests”, 
including futures contracts and commodity options or any other matter, which 
would cause us to be a commodity trading advisor under the U.S. Commodity 
Exchange Act, as amended.  



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

Reference Number:  1-2860699729 | Account Representative: E11086 | FORM: Siebel - 1-2860699729 | Page - 7 - of 7| Printed: 4/15/2014 | C043282 

©2014 Constellation Energy Resources, LLC.  All rights reserved. The offering herein is sold and contracted by Constellation NewEnergy, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Exelon Corporation. Errors and omissions excepted.      Std Short Form_v.2010_ Rev. Oct-27-2012            

 
 
    

ACCOUNT SCHEDULE: 
For:  City of Woodstock DBA Glenview Consulting 

The pricing set forth below is only valid until 5:00 PM Central Prevailing Time on 4/15/2014 
 

CNE shall have no obligation to enroll or supply electricity to any account(s) that are not identified on the Account Schedule below. 
Please verify that your specific information is COMPLETE and ACCURATE. 

Your review and acceptance of this information will help ensure accurate future invoices 
 

Notes: Accounts listed in the Account(s) Schedule may be updated or replaced with a new account number issued by the UDC, ISO or other entity. 
 

TO ACCEPT THE PRICING BELOW, PLEASE FAX A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT TO US AT (866) 470-0482. 
 
          No. of Service Accounts: 10 
 

UDC UDC Account 
Number Service Address Start Date End Date Energy Price Non TOU 

($/kWh) 

COMED 0328100027 1011 Wanda Lane, Woodstock, IL, 600984658 05/06/2014 05/05/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0015132082 986 Duvall, Woodstock, IL, 600988866 05/05/2014 05/04/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0363134114 1522 Hillside Tr, Woodstock, IL, 600988869 05/01/2014 05/02/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0371046034 Birch and Julie, Woodstock, IL, 60098 05/02/2014 05/03/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0031103027 1257 McConnell Road, Woodstock, IL, 60098 05/06/2014 05/05/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0036161047 1098 Kishwaukee Valley, Woodstock, IL, 
600983161 05/05/2014 05/04/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0082140001 Donovan Avenue, Woodstock, IL, 60098 05/05/2014 05/04/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0092076018 117 Greenwood Avenue, Woodstock, IL, 
600982826 05/05/2014 05/04/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0454069008 621 Greenwood, Woodstock, IL, 600982393 05/05/2014 05/04/2017 $ 0.059168 

COMED 0284105013 11210 McConnell Road, Woodstock, IL, 
600987307 05/06/2014 05/05/2017 $ 0.059168 

 
 

 
Payments to Certain Third-Parties: You acknowledge and understand that: 
o We are making a payment to World Energy Solutions, Inc. in connection with its efforts to facilitate our entering into this Agreement; and  
o Your price reflects the fee we are paying to World Energy Solutions, Inc. 
o World Energy Solutions, Inc. is acting on your behalf as your representative and is not a representative or agent of ours. 

You should direct any questions regarding such fee to World Energy Solutions, Inc.. 

 



       City of 

               
 
Pol i ce  Department  phone 815 .338 .6787  

Rober t  W.  Lo wen,  Chie f o f  Po l ice  fax 815 .334 .2275  

656  Lake Avenue  po l iced ept@wood stocki l .gov  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

To: Mr. Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 

From: Robert W. Lowen, Chief of Police 

Re:  Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement 

Date: April 21, 2014 

 

Attached are the Illinois Law Enforcement Alarm System (ILEAS) Mutual Aid Agreement and a 

proposed resolution.  ILEAS is the largest and most effective law enforcement mutual aid organization in 

the United States.  Over 900 counties, cities and other units of local government have joined.  ILEAS 

member agencies employ over 95% of the law enforcement officers in Illinois.  The continuing mission of 

ILEAS is to reduce costs and increase effectiveness of local law enforcement through the combining and 

sharing of resources and statewide coordination of mutual aid. 

 

In summary, the purpose of the agreement is to recognize that natural or manmade disasters may result in 

emergencies that exceed the resources, equipment and the law enforcement personnel of any given law 

enforcement agency.  Every law enforcement agency participating expresses the intent to aid and assist 

other participating law enforcement agencies during an emergency with equipment and personnel as 

circumstances permit and in accordance with the terms of the agreement. 

 

Carlos Arevalo, ZRFM, was asked to review the attached Agreement.  Two questions raised by that 

review were: 1. Annual Dues, and 2. Non-Member Affiliates.  Regarding annual dues, ILEAS has no 

intention of significantly raising dues. ILEAS is supported by a number of State and Federal Grants and 

the dues required primarily provide for insurance premiums which cannot be paid with Federal and State 

Funds.  Annual dues are currently $120.  Secondly, Mr. Arevalo questioned the definition of non-member 

affiliates.  Upon inquiry with ILEAS it is found that non-member affiliates are public safety organizations 

which employ sworn peace officers, as described by Illinois Statutes, which are not units of local 

government such as private colleges and hospital police forces.  The non-member affiliates must be 

approved by the ILEAS Board of Directors. 

 

It is therefore recommended that the Woodstock City Council approve the attached Resolution 

identified as Document No._____, authorizing the City of Woodstock to join the Illinois Law 

Enforcement Alarm System (ILEAS) and thereby approve the Mutual Aid Agreement attached. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Robert W. Lowen 

Chief of Police 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
6

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 6, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 23c









Resolution No. 14-R-__________________________________ 

A Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement and the 

Existence and Formation of the Illinois Law Enforcement Alarm System by Intergovernmental 

Cooperation. 

 Whereas the City of Woodstock, of the State of Illinois (hereinafter “Municipality”) is an Illinois 

Municipal Corporation of the State of Illinois and duly constituted public agency of the State of Illinois, 

and; 

 Whereas the City of Woodstock, as a public agency of the State of Illinois, is authorized and 

empowered by the Constitution of the State of Illinois (Ill. Const. Art. VII,  Section 10) and the Illinois 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.) to enter into intergovernmental agreements 

with other public agencies on matters of mutual concern and interest such as the provision of adequate 

law enforcement personnel and resources for the protection of residents and property falling within the 

jurisdiction of the Municipality, and; 

 Whereas the City of Woodstock recognizes that certain natural or man-made occurrences may 

result in emergencies or disasters that exceed resources, equipment and/or law enforcement personnel 

of a single given public agency, and; 

 Whereas, a given public agency can, by entering into a mutual aid agreement for law 

enforcement services and resources, effectively provide a broader range and more plentiful amount of 

law enforcement capability for the citizenry which it serves, and; 

 Whereas, in order to have an effective mutual aid agreement for law enforcement resources and 

services, this Municipality recognizes it must be prepared to come to the aid of the other public agencies 

in their respective times of need due to emergencies or disasters, and; 

 Whereas, this Municipality recognizes the need for our specific Municipality to develop an 

effective mutual aid agreement for law enforcement services and resources upon which it may call upon 

in its time of need and is prepared to enter into a mutual aid agreement for law enforcement services and 

resources with other like-minded public agencies, and; 

 Whereas, this Municipality also recognizes the need for the existence of a public agency, formed 

by an intergovernmental agreement between two or more public agencies, which can serve to coordinate 

and facilitate the provision of law enforcement mutual aid between signatory public agencies to a mutual 

aid agreement for law enforcement services and resources, and; 

 Whereas, this Municipality has been provided with a certain “Law Enforcement Mutual Aid 

Agreement” which has been reviewed by the elected officials of this Municipality and which other public 

agencies in the State of Illinois are prepared to execute, in conjunction with this Municipality, in order to 

provide and receive law enforcement mutual aid services as set forth in the “Law Enforcement Mutual Aid 

Agreement,” and; 

Whereas, it is the anticipation and intention of this Municipality that this “Law Enforcement Mutual Aid 

Agreement” will be executed in counterparts as other public agencies choose to enter into the “Law 

Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement” and strengthen the number of signatory public agencies and 

resources available from those public agencies, and; 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.6



 Whereas, it is the anticipation and intent of this Municipality that the “Law Enforcement Mutual Aid 

Agreement” will continue to garner support and acceptance from other currently unidentified public 

agencies who will enter into the “Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement” over time and be considered 

as if all signatory public agencies to the “Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement” had executed the “Law 

Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement” at the same time, 

 Now, therefore, be it resolved by this Municipality as follows: 

1. This Resolution shall be known as, and may hereafter be referred to as, the Resolution 

Authorizing the Execution of a Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement and the Existence 

and Formation of the Illinois Law Enforcement Alarm System by Intergovernmental 

Cooperation. 

2. The Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement and 

the Existence and Formation of the Illinois Law Enforcement Alarm System by 

Intergovernmental Cooperation shall be, and hereby is, enacted as follows: 

a. Authorization to enter into a Certain Agreement.  The Mayor of this Municipality is hereby 

authorized to sign, execute and deliver the agreement known as the “Law Enforcement 

Mutual Aid Agreement” and thereby enter into an intergovernmental agreement with such 

other public agencies of the State of Illinois as are likewise willing to enter into said “Law 

Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement” and recognize the existence and formation of the 

Illinois Law Enforcement Alarm System as set forth in the said “Law Enforcement Mutual 

Aid Agreement.” 

b. Savings Clause.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be 

held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the provisions of this Resolution. 

c. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law. 

Passed this _____ day of __________, _____. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

Abstain: 

Approved this 6
th
 day of May, 2014. 

 

    _______________________________ 

     Dr. Brian Sager, Mayor 

Attest: 

_________________________ 

   Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

















































…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    

               
Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  

3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  

www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Paul R. Ruscko, Public Works Director 

 

Re: Approval to Waive Requirement for Competitive Bids and Purchase 

Neptune Water Meters and Water Meter Reading System  

 

Date: April 29, 2014 

 

The approved FY14/15 Water and Sewer CIP Budget includes funding to allow the City to 

accelerate the pace of replacing all residential water meters within the community.  Over time 

aging meters begin to slowdown in favor of the customer by providing a reading that is less than 

accurate.  As more meters get replaced, the City will realize an increase in revenue from the 

more accurate sale of water.  In addition, these replacements should improve the efficiency of 

meter-reading operations, eliminate the need to enter a home to obtain a reading, result in less 

time dedicated toward meter reading, have a positive impact on the City’s water billed vs. 

pumped ratio, help in resolving billing disputes, and reduce chances of meter reading errors. 

 

In past years, approximately 200 new water meters were funded and replaced per year.  This 

fiscal year the City is targeting to purchase and replace approximately 700 new water meters for 

installation by staff.  The cost to replace “residential-type” water meters (up to and including 1 

½” meters) is borne by the City; there is no charge for labor or material to the customer.  In order 

to maintain consistency with approximately 8,000 water accounts in Woodstock, water meters 

need to be purchased from a single manufacturer.  This allows the City to utilize one software 

database for reading and billing, allows the City to standardize on units of measurement (which 

in Woodstock is 100 cubic feet), and allows the City to minimize parts inventory.  The City has 

standardized on Neptune water meters and the authorized distributor that serves our region is 

Water Resources Incorporated located in Elgin, Illinois. 

 

Typically, the City orders water meters once per month throughout the year.  However, the 

supplier has offered a discount ($5 per meter) when the City places a larger single order of 100 

meters or more.  The supplier has also offered an additional discount ($5 per meter) that would 

only be applied to our most frequently-used meter (i.e., 5/8” x 1/2”) if we commit to purchase a 

total of at least 650 meters (sum of all sizes) during the fiscal year. 

 

Water Meter Order <100 Order ≥100 Order ≥100 & min. 650 total 

5/8” x 1/2” $225 $220 $215 

3/4” $260 $255 $255 

1” $315 $310 $310 

 * Price per meter. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 6, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 23d



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

The water meter reading equipment and software is seven (7) years old.  Multiple versions have 

been released during this time, and the system is no longer being supported by the manufacturer.  

It is imperative that the Water and Sewer Utility have a reliable and supported system for reading 

water meters, as this is a key component to collect the budgeted $4.5M water and sewer sales 

revenue.  The cost for a new water meter reading system, including two handheld readers, 

software licenses, installation, and training, is $13,050. 

 

Budget line item 60-54-7-775 includes $190,000 for the Water Meter Replacement Program.  

This budget amount was based upon purchasing approximately 700 water meters and a new 

water meter reading system.  The exact quantity of each water meter size needed is unknown due 

to the fact that many of the meters are very old and meter size was not always accurately tracked 

in the past.  However, based on experience we can confidently plan for the majority needing to 

be 5/8” x 1/2” water meters with a relatively small percentage needing to be either 3/4” or 1” 

water meters.  

 

It is important to note that a waiver of competitive bids requires a 2/3 majority vote in 

accordance with State Statutes. 

 

It is recommended that the requirement for competitive bids be waived and that the City 

approve the purchase of a new water meter reading system and the purchase of a minimum 

of 650 water meters during the Fiscal Year 2014-15 from Water Resources, Inc. for a total 

cost not to exceed $190,000. 



 

 

 City of    

               
Department of  Community  & Economic  Development                                phone 815 .338 .4305  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .2269  

Woodstock,  I l l in o is  60098                                  commdevdept@woodstocki l .gov  

                                               www.woodstocki l .gov  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

April 30, 2014 

 

To:  Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Jim Kastner, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

 

B4 TO R1D REZONING OF A ONE-ACRE PARCEL   

LOCATED AT 1176 KISHWAUKEE VALLEY ROAD 

 

 

Geoff Corrado, the contract purchaser of a one-acre parcel of land identified as 1176 Kishwaukee 

Valley Road, will be appearing before the City Council seeking the rezoning of said property. 

Although occupied by a single-family residence and accessory/barn structure, the property is 

zoned “B4 office district.”  Mr. Corrado wishes to change the zoning designation to “R1D single 

family detached residential district.” 

 

The residential activity on the site is considered legal, non-conforming since it was established 

prior to Woodstock’s 1979 zoning regulations and because the property is not zoned for 

residential use.  It is Mr. Corrado’s intention to use the existing dwelling on the property as a 

home for his family.  The location of the property is depicted on the “location and zoning map” 

contained within the Community Development Report prepared for this request.  A copy of this 

report is attached, along with a copy of the applicant’s petition. 

 

A public hearing on the change of zoning was held by the Plan Commission on April 24, 2014.  

Although public input was requested during the hearing, there were no comments made and no 

objectors present.  After the conclusion of the hearing the Commission voted (6 yes and 0 no) to 

recommend to the City Council that the petition for R1D zoning be approved.  An abridged copy 

of the minutes from the Commission’s meeting is attached. 

 

During their deliberations, members of the Plan Commission observed that the proposed 

rezoning would permit the residential use of the property to continue, enable the current owners 

to sell their residence, and allow it to be used by new citizens of the City.  The Commission also 

noted that there was no evidence that the rezoning would have a detrimental impact on adjoining 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 6, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 23e



 

 

parcels or upon area land values. Furthermore, they pointed out that there would be no benefit to 

the surrounding area by maintaining the current zoning designation, especially given the mix of 

different land uses and zoning categories.  

 

If the City Council agrees with the action of the Plan Commission and believes that the 

proposed rezoning is appropriate, then it is recommended that the Council approve 

Document Number __________, consisting of “An Ordinance Rezoning Land Located at 

1176 Kishwaukee Valley Road from B4 Office District to R1D Single Family Detached 

Residential District.” 

 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
7



























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

ORDINANCE NUMBER 14-O-_________ 

 

An Ordinance Rezoning Land Located at 1176 Kishwaukee Valley Road 

from B4 Office District To R1D Single Family Detached Residential District 
 

WHEREAS, Geoff Corrado, the contract purchaser of the Subject Property described herein and 

owned by Michael Lackey and Susan Fleming, has petitioned the City of Woodstock to rezone said 

Subject Property from “B4 office district” to “R1D single family detached residential district” in the 

City of Woodstock, said property being referred to as 1176 Kishwaukee Valley Road and legally 

described as:  

 

That part of the East 10 acres of the North Half of Lot 2 of the Southwest Quarter of 

Section 6, Township 44 North, Range 7 East of the 3
rd

 Principal Meridian, which lies 

South of the North 1,057.66 feet thereof (excepting therefrom the East 164.52 feet 

thereof), in the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois (13-06-301-014), 

 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held regarding said petition by the City of Woodstock Plan 

Commission on April 24, 2014 after due notice in the manner provided by law and said Commission 

has unanimously recommended that the rezoning of the Subject Property be granted as requested; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the findings of fact based upon the evidence presented at 

the public hearing and submitted by the Petitioner to the Woodstock Plan Commission, as well as the 

recommendations of the Woodstock Plan Commission, and has determined that said rezoning 

petition should be granted; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the Subject Property and the zoning requested 

thereon is compatible with the zoning and use of land parcels in the immediate area, and has 

determined that said rezoning does not jeopardize the ability of abutting properties to be used in 

accordance with current underlying zoning designations. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

Page 1 

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.7



 

 

SECTION 1: That the Subject Property, legally described as: 

 

That part of the East 10 acres of the North Half of Lot 2 of the Southwest Quarter of 

Section 6, Township 44 North, Range 7 East of the 3
rd

 Principal Meridian, which lies 

South of the North 1,057.66 feet thereof (excepting therefrom the East 164.52 feet 

thereof), in the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois (13-06-301-014), 

 

is hereby zoned “R1D single family detached residential district” in accordance with and pursuant 

to the terms and standards of the Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 2: That all other requirements set forth in the Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance 

as would be required by any owner of property zoned in the same manner as the Subject Property, 

shall be applicable, and that the recommendation of the Plan Commission on the rezoning of the 

Subject Property is on file at City Hall as a part of the official record of the proceedings. 

 

SECTION 3: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of this Ordinance 

shall be judged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, 

impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder shall continue in full force and 

effect.  All ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

publication in pamphlet form (which publication is hereby authorized) as provided by law and as 

described above. 

 

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Abstentions:  

Absentees: 

APPROVED: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 

 City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

Passed: _______________________________, 2014 

 

Approved: _____________________________, 2014. 

 

Published: _____________________________, 2014. 

 

Prepared by City of Woodstock, 121 West Calhoun Street, Woodstock, IL 60098 

mamraen
Typewritten Text



  

       City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334-2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                          commdevdept@woodstocki l .gov  

                                                    www.woodstockil.gov 

 

April 30, 2014 

 

 

To:  Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

From:  Cort Carlson, Community & Economic Development Director 

 

APPROVAL OF WAIVER OF CITY FIRE SUPRESSION REQUIRMENT IN LIEU OF 

A FIRE ALARM SYSTEM FOR THE PROPERTY AT 823 LAKE AVE. 

 

The owners of 823 Lake Ave. (Coleman’s Tavern & Grill) recently contacted City staff 

regarding the building of a small 160 sq. ft. addition to replace patron seating displaced by video 

gaming operations.  The proposed addition would make the building exceed current fire 

suppression code requirements which state that a fire suppression and alarm system is required in 

any A-2 Use when occupancy exceeds 100 people.  The building is currently legal non-

conforming and does not have sprinkling or alarm systems.  The requirement of a sprinkling 

system would be cost prohibitive and not allow the project to proceed.   

 

The Building Board of Construction Commission met on April 29
th

, 2014 (minutes attached) to 

review the owner’s request to waive City-adopted sprinkling requirements.  After thorough 

consideration of all exits, which comply with all building code requirements, the Commission 

recommended, and the building owner agreed to, a waiver of the sprinkling requirements in lieu 

of a City-monitored alarm system.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 

If the City Council agrees and supports a waiver of fire suppression requirement in lieu of 

a City-monitored manual and automatic fire alarm system at 823 Lake Ave., then it is 

recommended that Document Number __________, consisting of “AN ORDINANCE 

VARYING BUILDING CODE PROVISIONS FOR PROPERTY AT 823 LAKE 

AVENUE” be approved. 
 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
8

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 6, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 23f



 
 

 

Minutes 
 

Building Board of Construction 

City of Woodstock 

 

April 29
th

, 2014 

Call to Order 
 

A meeting of the Building Board of Construction Commission was called to order at 7:00 p.m., 

Tuesday April 29
th

, 2014.  Members present were, Tom LaFontaine, John Loacker, John Kohler 

and Mike Hill.  City staff present was Dan Streit.  Members not present Steve Zimmerman. 

 

Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion by John Loacker, seconded by Tom LaFontaine to approve the minutes from the August 

29
th

, 2014 meeting.  All ayes, motion carried. 

 

Agenda Item 3. 
 

Coleman’s Restaurant 823 Lake Ave is requesting a variance to Woodstock’s adopted Building and 

Fire Code which requires a fire suppression and alarm system in any A-2 Use (restaurant) when its 

occupancy is 100 or more people.  The owner is requesting the variance in order to add a 160 Sq. feet 

addition for video gaming machines.  The restaurant currently has seating for 117 patrons, and the 

new addition would accommodate six (6) additional patrons located at the front of the building at a 

maximum travel distance of 62 feet from one (1) exit, and would be within 42 feet of two (2) exits.  

The restaurant is currently legal non-conforming and has no alarm or sprinkling system. 

 

Bill Levernier architect for Mr. Coleman went on to state that the building has six remotely located 

exits, three times the amount required by code.  There are three exits on the street side, and three on 

the opposite rear side.  The code restricts the travel distance to a maximum of 200 feet.  The two 

most remote exits are 145 feet apart, with each dining room having at least one exit in that room.  He 

feels that the number of exits and their remote locations will allow for easier and faster evacuation in 

the event of an emergency than the code requires. 

 

Board member Mike Hill (WFRD) agreed with the number of exits and the distance to exit the 

building, he also stated that the establishment has had a clean fire prevention record through the 

years.  He stated that he would like to see some protection of the business as it is required by code, 

and asked Mr. Coleman if he would install a fire alarm system in lieu of a fire suppression system.  

       City of 

              

Department  of Community Development                                                 phone  815 .338 .4305
121  W. Calhoun Stree t                                                     fax 815 .334 .2269
Woodstock ,  I l l inoi s  60098                               commdevdept@woodstock- i l .com

                                            www.woodstock- i l .com



Mr. Coleman stated he would agree to a fire alarm as the installation of a sprinkler system wouldn’t 

be within budget and the addition wouldn’t be possible.   

 

Board Member John Kohler asked where the machines are located now.  Mr. Coleman stated that 

they are in an alcove where seating use to be located, and that he’d like to gain back those additional 

15 seats.  Mr. Coleman also stated the new proposed room would not be enclosed with a door as the 

state requires a visible site.   

 

Building Inspector Dan Streit informed Mr. Coleman that not only would there be a building permit 

for a building addition, but one for a fire alarm installation as well.  He also stated the city monitors 

the fire alarm and with that comes a monthly fee.  Mr. Coleman understood and still agreed to the 

fire alarm in lieu of a sprinkler system. 

 

Board members John Loacker, John Kohler, and Tom LaFontaine all agreed that they would like to 

see protection of the restaurant in some capacity and took into consideration the number of exits the 

restaurant currently has on site.  They all felt a fire alarm would give all occupants early notification, 

as well as giving the Fire Department notice even if the building wasn’t occupied. 

 

Motion by John Kohler, to approve the restaurant addition with the installation of an automatic and 

manual fire alarm system monitored by the City of Woodstock, in lieu of a fire suppression system. 

Seconded by Tom LaFontaine.  All ayes, motion carried. 

 

 

Adjournment  
 

Motion by Tom LaFontaine, seconded by Mike Hill, to adjourn.  All ayes, motion carried.  

Meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Daniel Streit 

Building Inspector 

City of Woodstock 



 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 14-O-_____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE VARYING BUILDING CODE PROVISIONS  

FOR PROPERTY AT 823 LAKE AVENUE 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Building Construction conducted a public meeting on April 29, 2014, 

regarding the proposed code variation and unanimously recommended its approval to the City 

Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, representatives of the Woodstock Fire Rescue District and Fire Safety Consultants, 

Inc. (the City of Woodstock’s fire safety consultant) have recommended approval of the 

requested variation.  

 

NOW, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

Section One.   That Section 903.2.1.2 of the International Building Code as adopted by the City 

of Woodstock, and Section 903.2.1.2 of the International Fire Code as adopted by the City of 

Woodstock, are hereby varied to allow the remodeling of a portion of an existing building at 823 

Lake Avenue (Coleman’s Restaurant), without the installation of an automatic fire suppression 

system but subject to compliance with all other building and construction code requirements, 

including the installation of an automatic and manual fire alarm system monitored by the City of 

Woodstock. 

 

Section Two.  That this ordinance shall be known as Ordinance Number 14-O-_________ and 

shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval as provided by law. 

 

Section Three.  Any ordinances or parts thereof or any regulations in conflict with this 

ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois, this __________ day of May, 2014. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

      ______________________________ 

                                          Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

Attest:         

 

________________________________    

City Clerk Dianne Mitchell     

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.8



 

 
       City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334.2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                                                commdevdept@woodstocki l . gov 

      www.woodstocki l .gov  
                                        

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date  April 29, 2014 

 

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Nancy Baker, City Planner 

 

RE: CHANGE ORDER 005 FOR OLD COURTHOUSE CUPOLA RESTORATION 

 

Significant progress has been made on the Old Courthouse cupola restoration, however as each 

piece of trim or roofing material is removed, new problems arise due to a combination of the way 

in which the cupola was originally constructed and the extensive deterioration of materials.   

 

The attached Change Order Number 005 includes the following work items: 

 

1. Replace the louvered door ($1,820).   

2. Install new sheathing on ledge at base of dome above crown molding ($2,800). 

3. Install 2 X 4 blocking for crown molding and fascia and install new plywood on ledge at 

base of copper dome ($6,913) 

4. Remove and replace 55 existing louvers ($10,560). 

5. Remove and replace deteriorated 5/4” X 6” trim on both sides of louvers. ($7,080). 

6. Supply 7” crown molding stock. ($860) 

 

The contract with Renaissance Restoration specifies that 8 of the 72 louvers will be replaced. 

Upon further inspection, there are many more that are cracked, rotted and/or eroded than 

previously thought.  By replacing all louvers now, the wood should retain paint much longer and 

require less maintenance in the future.   

 

The existing louvered door was created by modifying one of the louvered openings.  The wood 

that was cut to form the door was never properly sealed causing the door to warp and rot.  In 

addition, door hardware was not designed for exterior use.  The following photos illustrate the 

condition of the louvers. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 6, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 23g



 

 

 

 

The 5/4” X 16” trim on the sides of the louvers has rotted away at the bottom for at least a 

second time.  Metal channels hidden behind the eight corner columns presumably originally 

directed rain water away from the interior of the cupola, however the channels were blocked off 

at some point, thus allowing water to pool behind the trim.  The trim boards on the sides of the 

louvers were cut off a few inches from the bottom and replaced.  The new wood has also rotted.  

The photo below shows the metal channels that have been the cause of significant deterioration 

of these trim pieces along with other wood at the base of the cupola which was included in the 

original contract and a previous change order.  (Note the new mahogany column being prepped 

for installation on the left side of the photo.) 

 

 

 
 



New sheathing is required on the two ledges at the base of the arched part of the structure.  The 

cost of the new sheathing is based on the unit price per square foot of new decking (plywood) of 

$17.50 SF which was contained in the base bid. 

 

The contract specifies that 50 percent of the7-inch crown molding will be replaced.  The rest was 

to be scraped and painted.  When the crown molding was removed, the substructure was found to 

be deteriorated and inadequate to re-attach and support the new crown molding.  Additional 

blocking was required. The remaining crown molding also had to be removed so that the 

structural support could be improved and it was determined that it should be replaced rather than 

reinstalled.  The following four photos illustrate the location and condition of the original 

molding, underlying materials, and the new molding. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

      
 

 



 
 

 

The additional work has been reviewed and recommended by Gary W. Anderson, Architects and 

is included in Change Order 005.  The cost of the additional work totals $30,033 and will be 

funded utilizing the reserves within the TIF Fund.  The revisions were not anticipated at the time 

of the award of the contract and are for work that will be completed within the original scope of 

the contract.  The additional items are necessary for the completion of the project and it is in the 

best interest of the City to approve the Change Order documents.    

  

Therefore, it is recommended that the attached Resolution identified as Document No. 

____________, authorizing Change Order 005 be approved, resulting in an increase to the 

contract of $30,033.  

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
9



 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER 005 IN THE CONTRACT FOR THE OLD 

COURTHOUSE CUPOLA AND ROOF RESTORATION 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, on October 

15, 2013 authorized the Mayor and Clerk to enter into a contract (the “Contract”) with Renaissance 

Restoration, Inc. (the “Contractor”) that exceeded $10,000.00, and  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Contract, the Contractor agreed to provide all labor, 

equipment, materials, supplies, and related items for the restoration of the Old Courthouse cupola, dome 

and roof; and 

 WHEREAS, since the Contract was approved by the City Council, the scope of services to be 

provided by the Contractor needs to be revised, necessitating a change order in the Contract; and 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor is to make the changes requested by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to 720ILCS 5/33E-9, Change Orders, the City Council finds (1) the 

circumstances said to necessitate the change in performance were not reasonably foreseeable at the time 

the Agreement was entered; and (2) the change is germane to the original Agreement as signed, and (3) 

the change order is in the best interest of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, 720ILCS 5/33E-9, requires that any change order be made in writing. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 That the provisions outlined in the attached change order No. 005 are hereby approved and the 

City Manager is authorized to execute the Change Order incorporating said proposal. 

 Passed this _____ day of _______________, 2014 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

        ______________________________ 

         Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

______________________________ 

City Clerk 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.9




	May 6, 2014 City Council Agenda 
	A. Floor Discussion:
	1. Presentation from Friends of the Opera House
	2. Public Works Week Recognition
	3. National Police Week Recognition 
	Retirement Proclamations
	4. Dennis Leard Retirement Proclamation
	5. Fred Spitzer Retirement Proclamation
	6. Tim DeWane Retirement Proclamation
	7. Bill Kreutz Retirement Proclamation
	8. Promotion of Officer Lanz to Sergeant

	B. Public Hearing: 2003 Debt Certificates
	C. Minutes of Previous Meetings: April 15, 2014
	Warrants:
	Warrant #3613
	Warrant # 3614
	MFT#534

	E. Minutes and Reports:
	Dept. of CED - March 2014
	Police Department Report - March 2014
	Historic Preservation Commission Minutes - February 24, 2014
	Plan Commission Minutes - April 24, 2014

	Manager's Report No.23 
	1. Traffic Ordinances - Community Events
	Doc.1
	Doc.2
	Doc.3
	Doc.4
	Doc.5

	2. NIGEC Contract
	3. Police Mutual Aid Agreement
	Doc.6

	4. Purchase of Water Meters
	5. Zoning Variation- 1176 Kishwaukee Valley Road
	Doc.7

	6. Building Code Variance - Coleman's
	Doc.8 

	7. Old Courthouse Roof Repair
	Doc.9





